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YEAR     AWARDS / RECOGNITION	 DESCRIPTION

2007	 Frost & Sullivan	 Contact Centre Service Provider of the Year,	
	 	 Malaysia Telecoms Award.

2007	 Global Services 	 Listed in the “Top 10 Companies to Watch in
	 Magazine and neoIT	 Emerging Asian Markets” as well as among the
	 	 Top 10 nominees for “Specialty Application
	 	 Development Providers”.

2007	 Global Services	 Listed within the “Global Outsourcing 100”.
	 Magazine and neoIT	

Kindly refer to the 2006 Annual Report for the list of awards and recognition awarded to 
Scicom prior to the 2007 financial year.
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	 YBhg Dato’ Ahmad Kabeer                         
bin Mohamed Nagoor

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

YBhg Dato’ Ahmad Kabeer bin Mohamed Nagoor, 50, 
a Malaysian, was appointed to the Board on 22 August 
2005. He is also the Chairman of the Group. 

In 1986, he was with the Bank of Nova Scotia in its 
foreign exchange division, before becoming a lecturer 
at the School of Management, Universiti Sains Malaysia 
between 1988 and 1994. He was the founder of AKN 
Industries Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AKN 
Technology Berhad.

His other directorships include AKN Technology Berhad 
(of which he is currently Executive Chairman of the 
Board), AKN Messaging Technologies Berhad, MEMS 
Technology Berhad (of which he is currently Chairman of 
the Board) and AWC Facility Solutions Berhad (of which 
he is currently the Deputy Chairman of the Board).

He holds a Master’s Degree in Finance.

He does not have any family relationship with any 
director and/or major shareholder of Scicom and is 
not aware of any conflict of interest with Scicom.

	 Leo Ariyanayakam

Non-Independent Executive Director

Mr. Leo Ariyanayakam, 43, a Sri Lankan, was appointed 
to the Board on 30 October 2002. He is also the Chief 
Executive Officer and Group Executive Director. His main 
responsibilities as the Chief Executive Officer and Group 
Executive Director, are to maximise shareholder a value, 
making high-level decisions in terms of the Group’s 
business development, finance, technology, human 
capital, culture, operations and strategies, and charting 
the future growth and direction of the Group globally.

From left to right
•	 Krishnan Menon
•	 Dr. Nikolai Dobberstein
•	 YBhg Dato’ Ahmad Kabeer bin 
	 Mohamed Nagoor
•	 Leo Ariyanayakam
•	 YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin	

Hj Harun
•	 Loh Lee Soon

Under his guidance, Scicom has won several major 
international industry awards, including the “Contact 
Centre Service Provider of the Year”, as conferred at the 
recently held 2007 Frost & Sullivan Malaysia Telecoms 
Awards in May 2007. 

On 7 October 2006, he was appointed the President of 
the Customer Relationship Management and Contact 
Centre Association of Malaysia (CCAM). 

In March 2007, the Association of the Computer and 
Multimedia Industry of Malaysia (PIKOM) honoured 
him as a “Key Industry Leader”, for his efforts and 
contributions in developing the BPO industry.

In June, he was selected as one of Malaysia’s Outstanding 
Entrepreneurs at the 2007 Asia Pacific Entrepreneurship 
Awards.

He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Biochemistry.

He does not have any family relationship with any 
director and/or major shareholder of Scicom and is not 
aware of any conflict of interest with Scicom.

	 YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin Hj Harun

Independent Non-Executive Director

YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin Hj Harun, 63, a Malaysian, 
was appointed to the Board on 22 August 2005. He is 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Bankers and a 
member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants.

He started his career in government service in 1971, 
before moving on to the banking and financial sector in 
1974. He has 32 years of experience, having held various 
senior positions in Aseambankers Malaysia Berhad and 
Malayan Banking Berhad respectively between 1994 
and 2000, and then as a Deputy Governor of Bank 
Negara Malaysia between 2000 and 2004.

His other directorships include RHB Capital Berhad, RHB 
Bank Berhad, RHB Insurance Berhad, RHB Islamic Bank 
Berhad and Titan Chemical Corp. Bhd.

He has been extensively involved in telecommunications 
and high-tech work across Asia, including issues of 
national technology strategy development, and research 
and development commercialisation.

He does not have any family relationship with any 
director and/or major shareholder of Scicom and is not 
aware of any conflict of interest with Scicom.

	 Loh Lee Soon

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Loh Lee Soon, 52, a Malaysian, was appointed to 
the Board of Directors on 25 April 2007. He is also a 
member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Loh is a member of the Malaysian Institute of	
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants	
in England and Wales. He spent nearly 24 years in the 
professional accounting, finance and management 	
consulting fields, including six years as a Practice Director 	
of a Big Four firm in Malaysia. He has also held senior 
finance, general management, and sales positions 
with multinational corporations including Tupperware 
International, KPMG Asia-Pacific, and Oracle 
Corporation, and a number of Malaysian companies.

Mr. Loh is currently the Principal of his own consulting 
firm which provides services primarily in business process 	
optimisation, information technology (“IT”) enablement, 
management skills training, and organisational alignment. 
His clients span industries as diverse as gaming, IT 
manufacturing and distribution, and property 
management. He also works with technology-based start-
up companies to develop their go-to-market capabilities.

He does not have any family relationship with any 
director and/or major shareholder of Scicom and is not 
aware of any conflict of interest with Scicom.

He does not have any family relationship with any director 
and/or major shareholder of Scicom and is not aware of 
any conflict of interest with Scicom.

	 Krishnan Menon

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Krishnan Menon, 57, a Malaysian, was appointed to 
the Board on 10 March 2004. He is also a member of the 
Audit Committee.

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
in England and Wales, and also a member of both the 
Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

He spent 13 years in public practice at Hanafiah, Raslan 
and Mohamed, seven of those years as a Partner. He then 
joined Public Bank Berhad as a General Manager, and 
was subsequently promoted to Executive Vice-President. 
After working with two public-listed companies, he 
joined Putrajaya Holdings Sdn Bhd between 1997 and 
2000 as its Chief Operating Officer.

His other directorships include MISC, AWC Facility 
Solutions Berhad, SPK-Sentosa Corporation Berhad, 
AKN Messaging Technologies Berhad, Putrajaya Perdana 
Berhad (of which he is currently the Chairman of the 
Board) and Putrajaya Holdings Sdn Bhd.

He does not have any family relationship with any director 
and/or major shareholder of Scicom and is not aware of 
any conflict of interest with Scicom.

	 Dr. Nikolai Dobberstein

Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Nikolai Dobberstein, 41, a German, was appointed to 
the Board on 22 August 2005. He is also a member of 
the Audit Committee.

He holds a Ph.D. in Technology and Innovation 
Management.

He is currently the Head of the Products & New Businesses 
Division of Maxis Communications Berhad, where he is 
responsible for product development and marketing as 
well as building Maxis’ infotainment and broadband 
businesses. He joined Maxis Communications Berhad in 
December 2004 to drive the development of Maxis’ 3G 
and broadband businesses.

Before joining Maxis in December 2004, he spent 12 
years in McKinsey & Company, three of those years as 
the Managing Partner of their Kuala Lumpur Office. He 
had also earlier worked in the German, Italian and Indian 
Offices of McKinsey & Company. 
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house and out-sourced) since 1982, with previous 
employments in various industries including airline, 
travel, insurance and telecommunications.

	 Jayakumar Narayana Pillai Sreedharan Nair	
Senior Vice-President – Finance                      

Jayakumar is one of the pioneer management staff of 
Scicom since its incorporation in 1997. His portfolio 
of responsibilities includes accounting and financial 
management activities, as well as the Group’s corporate 
finance, risk management, administration, corporate 
secretarial, budgeting and treasury activities.

He has over 24 years of experience in financial 
management and corporate services. Prior to 
joining Scicom, he had previously worked in large 
conglomerates such as Sime Darby Berhad and the 
Halim Rasip Group (now known as Integrax Berhad).

Jayakumar is an associate of both the Chartered 
Association of Chartered Accountants and Institute of 
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

	 Benny Philip 	
Senior Vice-President – Projects and Planning

Benny joined Scicom in 2004, where his main 
responsibilities include developing the Group’s human 
resource strategic plan and management of the human 
resource function of the Group, which includes its 
operations in India, United States and Singapore.

He brings with him to Scicom experience in both 
human resource-related generalist and specialist roles, 
having established and headed the human resource 
function for HSBC’s 2,000-seat customer contact 
centres in both India and Malaysia.

He began his career in 1991 with Intercraft South 
Exports, and has up to 2000, worked with companies 
such as Unilever, Indo Matsushita and Ford. Between 
2000 and mid-2004, he was HSBC’s Head of the 
Human Resource Group Service Centre in India, 
and was later promoted to Vice-President – Human 
Resource for their group service centre in Cyberjaya.

Benny has a Master’s Degree in Human Resources 
Management and a Bachelor’s Degree in 
Mathematics.

	 Willie Lim	
Senior Vice-President – Operations

Willie joined Scicom in October 2000, and carries 
with him over 20 years of industry experience in 
relation to general management, including sales and 
operations. In his capacity as the Senior Vice-President 
– Operations, he manages Scicom’s day-to-day 
operations of its global contact centres and manages 
the client’s expectations.

Prior to joining Scicom, he was an Executive Director 
in Abric Berhad, which is listed on the Second Board 
of Bursa Securities. He was also previously the Country 
Manager of United Parcel Service (M) Sdn Bhd, as well 
as the General Manager of Electrolux Home Centres.

Willie has a Bachelor’s Degree in Business 
Administration.

	 Guy Anthony Cary 	
Senior Vice-President – Operations

Guy originally joined Scicom in January 2000 as 
its Director of Operations, where he set up the 
Asia-Pacific Contact Centre for a key client and 
delivered operational consultancy services to various 
organisations in both Malaysia and Singapore.

He subsequently joined a major telecommunications 
group in Singapore as their Director of Customer 
Service.

He rejoined    Scicom in October 2006 as one of the 
Senior Vice-President – Operations, his primary role 
being to oversee all of the Group’s contact centre 
operations in Malaysia, as well as to ensure all operation 
processes, activities, functions, performances and 
results are in line with the objectives of the Group and 
its portfolio of high-profile clients.

Prior to his emigration from the United Kingdom, 
he was the Global Operations Manager for a major 
European airline group’s contact centre. His role 
involved the restructuring of the existing operations of 
both the airline and its partners, as well as selecting 
the design, system and contact centres’ locations to be 
integrated on a world-wide basis.

Guy has been working in contact centres (both in-

From left to right
• Radah Krishnan Vijaya Gopal   •	Gerry Pereira   • Shanti Jacqueline Jeya Raj  • Benny Philip  • Leo Ariyanayakam  • Willie Lim  
•	Jayakumar Narayana Pillai Sreedharan Nair  • Guy Anthony Cary  • Brenda Marshall  • Francis Meganathan  • Viji Rajasundram  
•	Anthony Jerard Rajendram

	 Radah Krishnan Vijaya Gopal	
Senior Vice-President – Corporate Planning

Radah has over 14 years of working experience in the 
areas of consulting, accounting and finance, strategic 
planning and business development. As the Senior 
Vice-President – Corporate Planning, he has the primary 
responsibility for the strategic planning and managing 
of Scicom’s business development initiatives. 

He joined Scicom in 2002 as a Consultant – Corporate 
Planning and was later promoted to Vice-President – 
Corporate Planning in early-2004 where he assisted in 
the Group’s formulation of strategic plans, execution 
of business development initiatives for strategic 
clients, management of projects and liaison with 
key government authorities in Malaysia and India 
respectively.

He then moved on to be in charge of the Group’s 
Indian operations, as the Country Manager and 
Vice-President – Operations, where he was primarily 
responsible for executing the Group’s strategic 
direction and operations in India. 

Prior to joining Scicom he was a Consultant in 
Corporate Finance and Investment Banking Services in 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting Sdn Bhd.

Radah, graduated with a professional accounting 
qualification from the Association of Chartered 
Certified Accountants in 1997.
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marketing and operational strategies.

She has extensive experience in the areas of 
marketing, advertising and management, thanks 
to 25 years of service with the New Straits Times 
Press (Malaysia) Berhad, where she held the 
position of Senior Manager, Marketing Support. 

Brenda holds a LLB from the University of London, 
a LLM as well as a Bachelor’s Degree in Mass 
Communication.

	 Gerry Pereira 
Managing Director – Jade Apple Marketing

Gerry joined Scicom in October 2006, to spear-
head the Group’s initiatives in the management of 
customer loyalty programmes. With over 20 years 
of experience in the advertising and marketing 
industry, Gerry has developed a unique perspective 
of the marketing business across the Asia Pacific.

Gerry started his marketing career as an Account 
Manager at Ogilvy Direct in Singapore. He was the 
first Asian Managing Director of JWT Singapore, 
rising to become the Chief Executive Officer and 
Chairman of JWT South-East Asia, where he 
managed and developed strategies for a variety of 
brands including Citibank, Unilever, Nestle, Saab, 
Ford and Burger King. Gerry was a key contributor 
to the launch of Citibank’s credit cards and Saab 
respectively, in Singapore, as well as Burger King’s 
entry into Singapore.

Gerry has spent many years working in markets 
across Asia including the Philippines, Indonesia, 
Melbourne and Malaysia. Furthermore, his regional 
role at JWT South-East Asia gave him insights into 
consumers across Asia Pacific including China, 
India, Thailand, Korea, Japan and Australia.

More recently, Gerry was the Carlson Marketing 
Group’s President for the Asia Pacific region, where 
he spent six years expanding the group from its initial 
four offices in Asia to 13 offices across Asia Pacific 
and the Middle-East. In addition to building the 
business, Gerry developed a keen understanding of 
the customer relationship business, and how best 
practices in the western world needed “asianising” 
before they could be considered as best practice in 
this part of the world.

	 Francis Meganathan	
Principal Consultant – Project Management Office

Francis joined Scicom in March 2007, his core 
responsibilities being to facilitate transition 
management and implementation of new projects 
using Scicom’s Service Delivery Model, application 
of project management methodologies to continual 
process improvement, and to provide a repository 
for all project management tools needed in order for 
the Group to provide integrated business solutions 
to its outstanding portfolio of clients, ranging from 
national companies to large  conglomerates.

Prior to joining Scicom, he had implemented large 
enterprise-wide systems for some of the Fortune 
500 companies. He was also previously attached 
to Accenture in Malaysia as their Senior Manager, 
as well as being part of the Resources Market Unit 
Leadership team in Asia.

He has been in the IT industry for more than 
20 years, having worked 10 of those years in 
Europe. He is familiar with the global information 
technology industry, and has significant 
experience in working in both multi-cultural and 
multi-language environments. He also specialises 
in managing large business integration projects, 
coupled with skills in the implementation of   IT 
infrastructures to support large multinational 
companies.

Francis holds a Master of Science Degree in Information 
Systems, a Post-graduate Diploma in Microprocessor 
Application, and a Bachelor of Science Degree in 
Combined Sciences (Physics and Computing).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to submit their Report to the members together with the audited financial 
statements of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2007.
 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are that of an investment holding company and the provision of 
customer contact centre within the Business Process Outsourcing space.  The Group provides customer 
contact centre outsourcing services, customer services training products as well as contact centre 
consulting and marketing services. The details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in 
Note 15 to the financial statements. 

There has been no significant change in the principal activities of the Company and the Group during 
the financial year other than that of a subsidiary, Jade Apple Marketing Pte Ltd (formerly known as 
Scicom Teleservices Pte Ltd) and the incorporation of a new subsidiary, Jade Apple Marketing Sdn Bhd, 
respectively as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
	 Group	 Company
	 RM	 RM

Net profit for the financial year	 11,310,624	 10,633,050
	 	

Attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Company	 11,315,112	 10,633,050
- Minority interest	 (4,488)	 0
	 	

	 11,310,624	 10,633,050
	 	 	

DIVIDENDS

The dividends on ordinary shares paid or declared by
  the Company since 30 June 2006 were as follows:

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2006,
  a final gross dividend of 2 sen, tax exempt, per 
  ordinary share, paid on 29 September 2006		  2,588,660

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2007,
  an  interim gross dividend of 1 sen, tax exempt, per 
  ordinary share, paid on 8 March 2007		  2,630,220
		
		  5,218,880

	  	
The Directors now recommend the payment of a final gross dividend of 1 sen per ordinary share, 
tax exempt, in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2007 amounting to RM2,636,030. The 
dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.

RM

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

All material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year have been disclosed 
in the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year, 135,122,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each were issued by the 
Company. The details of the new ordinary shares issued are as follows:

Number of shares		 Purpose of issue		  Class of issue 	 Term of issue

129,433,000		  Bonus issue 		  Ordinary		  One ordinary share for 
						      each existing ordinary 
						      share held via capitalisation 
						      of the share premium reserve

952,000		  Exercise of Employee Share 	 Ordinary 		  At premium of
		  Option Scheme (“ESOS”) 			   RM0.50 per share

4,737,000		  Exercise of ESOS 		  Ordinary		  At premium of 
						      RM0.20 per share

The new ordinary shares issued during the financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the 
existing issued shares of the Company.

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The ESOS was implemented on 23 September 2005 for the benefit of eligible employees and Directors 
of the Group and the Company. The ESOS is to be in force for a period of five years for which it is 
governed by the ESOS By-Laws.

The ESOS Committee comprising appointed members of the Board was set up to administer the ESOS, 
may from time to time offer share options to eligible employees and Directors of the Group and the 
Company to subscribe for new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in the Company.

Details of the ESOS By Laws are set out in Note 24(b) to the financial statements.

The Company made an adjustment to the number and subscription price of the existing share options 
in accordance with the requirements of Articles 15.1 and 15.3 respectively of the ESOS By-Laws, which 
requires the share options to be adjusted if the Company alters its capital structure by way of bonus 
issue. The adjustment resulted in the subscription price for the options being revised to RM0.30 per 
ordinary share, and the total number of share options were adjusted  based on any unexercised options 
as at the date of the bonus shares issued. There were no share options granted during the financial 
year.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT



EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The Company has been exempted by the Companies Commission of Malaysia from having to disclose 
in this Report the names of employees who have options in aggregate of less than 550,000. The names 
of employees who have options in aggregate of 550,000 options or more are as follows:

Name of employee	 Number of options 
	 ‘000

Willie Lim	 1,000
Radah Krishnan A/L Vijaya Gopal	 800
Benny Phillip	 700
Anthony Jerard Rajendram                                                                                                            700
Jayakumar A/L Narayana Pillai Sreedharan Nair 	 650
Shanti Jacqueline A/P K Jeya Raj	 625

DIRECTORS

The Directors who have held office during the period since the date of the last report are as follows:

YBhg Dato’ Ahmad Kabeer bin Mohamed Nagoor
YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin Hj. Harun
Krishnan Menon
Nikolai Dobberstein
Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam
Loh Lee Soon                                                     (appointed on 25 April 2007)

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam and 
YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin Hj. Harun are required to retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In accordance with Article 91 
of the Company’s Articles of Association, Loh Lee Soon who was appointed during the financial year 
retires at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for election. 

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company and the 
Group is a party, with the object or objects of enabling Directors of the Company and the Group to 
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other 
body corporate, other than the Company’s ESOS.

Since the end of the previous financial period, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a 
benefit (other than as disclosed in Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements respectively) by reason of 
a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which he 
is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, particulars of interests of Directors who held office 
at the end of the financial year in shares and options over shares of the Company are as follows:

	  Number of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in the Company	
    	     At 1 July
	 2006/date of		  Bonus		  At
	   appointment	 Bought	   issue	 Disposed	 30 June 2007
	 ‘000	 ‘000	 ‘000	 ‘000	 ‘000
Direct interest in shareholdings

YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin Hj. Harun	 220	 0	 220	 0	 440
Krishnan Menon	 7,024	 0	 7,024	 0	 14,048
Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam	 18,680	 0	 18,680	 0	 37,360
Nikolai Dobberstein	 470	 30	 500	 0	 1,000
Loh Lee Soon	 317	 0	 0	 0	 317
	 	 	 	 	

	 26,711	 30	 26,424	 0	 53,165
	 				  

Deemed interest in shareholdings

Krishnan Menon1	 21,409	 0	 21,409	 0	 42,818
YBhg Dato’ Ahmad Kabeer bin
  Mohamed Nagoor2	 19,000	 0	 19,000	 (25,333)	 12,667
	 	 	 	 	

	 40,409	 0	 40,409	 (25,333)	 55,485
	 				  

1Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Netinsat Asia Sdn Bhd, pursuant to Section 6A of   
 the Companies Act 1965.

2Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in AKN Capital Sdn Bhd, pursuant to Section 6A of  
 the Companies Act 1965.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Number of options over ordinary shares of
RM0.10 each in the Company

	 At			   At
	 1 July 2006	 Adjusted 	 Exercised	 30 June 2007
	 ‘000	 ‘000	 ‘000	 ‘000

Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam	 1,000	 1,000	 0	 2,000
				  

Other than as disclosed above, according to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, none of the 
Directors in office at the end of the financial year held any interest in shares of the Company, options 
over shares and debentures of the Company and shares of its related corporations during the financial 
year.

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Before the income statements and balance sheets were made out, the Directors took reasonable 
steps:

(a)	 to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the 
making of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had 
been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

(b)	 to ensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary 
course of business their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group and the Company 
had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(a)	 which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for 
doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and the Company inadequate to any 
substantial extent; or

(b)	 which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group 
and the Company misleading; or

(c)	 which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities 
of the Group and the Company misleading or inappropriate.

No contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the 
period of 12 months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or 
may affect the ability of the Group or the Company to meet their obligations when they fall due.

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

At the date of this Report, there does not exist:

(a)	 any charge on the assets of the Group or the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year which secures the liability of any other person; or 

(b)	 any contingent liability of the Group or the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial 
year.

At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with 
in this Report or the financial statements which would render any amount stated in the financial 
statements misleading. 

In the opinion of the Directors:

(a)	 the results of the Group’s and the Company’s operations during the financial year were not 
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature other than 
those disclosed in the income statements and the related Notes to the financial statements; and

(b)	 there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report 
any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the 
results of the operations of the Group or the Company for the financial year in which this Report is 
made.

AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution dated 9 August 2007.

LEO SURESH ARIYANAYAKAM	 KRISHNAN MENON
DIRECTOR	 DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur
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	                                   	 Group	                              Company
	                                 Note	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006

		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

REVENUE	 6	 109,002,736	 77,904,664	 77,957,839	 61,627,296

OTHER OPERATING INCOME		  45,111	 67,073	 44,961	 50,832
		  	 	 	

		  109,047,847	 77,971,737	 78,002,800	 61,678,128

OPERATING EXPENSES
- Depreciation of plant and equipment		  6,839,420	 4,377,237	 4,165,882	 3,421,006
- Maintenance expenses		  1,191,950	 898,690	 821,452	 501,222
- Management fees		  0	 0	 8,323,487	 6,633,594
- Rental expenses	 7	 4,874,019	 4,084,868	 3,576,509	 2,847,143
- Employee benefits costs	 8	 74,777,055	 48,560,618	 45,131,666	 34,557,799
- Staff welfare expenses		  889,971	 1,313,999	 317,466	 35,239
- Travelling expenses		  2,344,888	 1,889,654	 1,294,866	 1,165,781
- Telecommunication and utilities
    expenses		  3,005,229	 2,037,001	 1,883,867	 1,757,278
- Other operating expenses	 9	 4,211,722	 4,246,487	 2,106,601	 4,154,778
					   
	 	 (98,134,254)	 (67,408,554)	 (67,621,796)	 (55,073,840)
					   
NET FINANCE INCOME	 10	 366,032	 197,436	 269,335	 135,984
		  	 	 	

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION	 9	 11,279,625	 10,760,619	 10,650,339	 6,740,272
TAXATION	 11	 30,999	 (1,669,291)	 (17,289)	 (57,000)
		  	 	 	

NET PROFIT FOR THE
  FINANCIAL YEAR		  11,310,624	 9,091,328	 10,633,050	 6,683,272
		  		   		

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
- Equity holders of the Company		  11,315,112	 9,091,328	 10,633,050	 6,683,272
- Minority interest		  (4,488)	 0	 0	 0
		  	 	 	

NET PROFIT FOR THE
  FINANCIAL YEAR		  11,310,624	 9,091,328	 10,633,050	 6,683,272
		  				  

Earnings per share:
- Basic (sen)	 12	 4.33	 3.86
- Diluted (sen)	 12	 4.25	 3.79
		  	

Gross dividend per share (sen)	 13	 1.0	 4.0	 1.0	 4.0
		  	 	 	  

	                                	 Group	                                 Company
	 Note	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Plant and equipment	 14	 18,339,718	 15,805,525	 10,187,278	 9,491,345
Investment in subsidiaries	 15	 0	 0	 645,986	 575,990
Deferred tax assets	 23	 197,027	 21,306	 0	 0
		  	 	 	

		  18,536,745	 15,826,831	 10,833,264	 10,067,335
		  	 	 	

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables	 16	 19,861,033	 8,385,594	 16,050,503	 4,515,927
Deposits, prepayments and
  other receivables	 17	 6,397,056	 2,856,092	 2,684,688	 1,917,955
Amounts due from subsidiaries	 18	 0	 0	 12,138,195	 9,482,248
Deposits with a licensed bank	 19	 7,632,194	 16,334,058	 7,466,153	 16,185,272
Cash and bank balances	 20	 277,006	 5,786,402	 47,560	 892,519
		  	 	 	

		  34,167,289	 33,362,146	 38,387,099	 32,993,921
	 	 	 	 	

LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables and accruals	 21	 5,551,248	 7,883,150	 3,737,811	 4,561,427
Current tax liabilities		  417,983	 1,778,316	 0	 14,250
Amount due to a subsidiary	 18	 0	 0	 4,052	 0
Borrowings (secured and 
  interest-bearing)	 22	 1,678,279	 1,260,472	 1,678,279	 1,174,104
		  	 	 	 	
		  7,647,510	 10,921,938	 5,420,142	 5,749,781
		  	 	 	

NET CURRENT ASSETS	 	 26,519,779	 22,440,208	 32,966,957	 27,244,140
		  	 	 	

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables and accruals	 21	 4,774	 34,468	 0	 0
Borrowings (secured and
  interest-bearing) 	 22	 214,826	 1,236,317	 214,826	 1,069,664
		  	 	 	

		  219,600	 1,270,785	 214,826	 1,069,664
		  	 	 	

NET ASSETS	 	 44,836,924	 36,996,254	 43,585,395	 36,241,811
		  	 	 	

INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2007
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	                                	 Group	                                 Company
	 Note	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Share capital	 24	 26,360,300	 12,848,100	 26,360,300	 12,848,100
Share premium reserve		  3,594,214	 15,177,000	 3,594,214	 15,177,000
Currency translation reserve		  (239,629)	 (29,141)	 0	 0
Retained earnings	 25	 15,096,527	 9,000,295	 13,630,881	 8,216,711
		  	 	 	

Total shareholders’ equity		  44,811,412	 36,996,254	 43,585,395	 36,241,811
Minority interest’s equity		  25,512	 0	 0	 0
		  	 	 	

TOTAL EQUITY		  44,836,924	 36,996,254	 43,585,395	 36,241,811
		  	 	 	

			  Issued and fully paid ordinary
			              shares of RM0.10 each	                      Non-distributable	       Distributable	
								        Attributable
					     Share	 Currency		  to equity
			   Number	 Nominal	 premium	 translation	 Retained	 holders of	 Total
		  Note	 of shares	      value	 reserve	       reserve	 earnings	  the Company	 equity

Group		  unit	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

At 1 July 2005		  75,000,000	 7,500,000	 0	 (12,610)	 4,509,367	 11,996,757	 11,996,757

Currency translation differences,

representing total income and 

expense recognised directly in equity		  0	 0	 0	 (16,531)	 0	 (16,531)	 (16,531)

Net profit for the financial year  		  0	 0	 0	 0	 9,091,328	 9,091,328	 9,091,328

Total recognised income and 
expense for the year		  0	 0	 0	 (16,531)	 9,091,328	 9,074,797	 9,074,797

Dividend for financial year ended:

-	 30 June 2005	 13	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (2,040,000)	 (2,040,000)	 (2,040,000)

-	 30 June 2006	 13	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (2,560,400)	 (2,560,400)	 (2,560,400)

Rights issue	 24	 20,400,000	 2,040,000	 0	 0	 0	 2,040,000	 2,040,000

Issue of ordinary shares:

-	 32,600,000 ordinary shares
of RM0.10 each issued
pursuant to the Initial Public
Offering at an issue price of
RM0.60 per ordinary share	 24	 32,600,000	 3,260,000	 16,300,000	 0	 0	 19,560,000	 19,560,000

-	 481,000 ordinary shares of
RM0.10 each issued pursuant
to the ESOS at an issue price
of RM0.60 per ordinary share	 24	 481,000	 48,100	 240,500	 0	 0	 288,600	 288,600

Share issue expenses in relation

to the Initial Public Offering		  0	 0	 (1,363,500)	 0	 0	 (1,363,500)	 (1,363,500)

			   	 	 	 	 	 	

At 30 June 2006		  128,481,000	 12,848,100	 15,177,000	 (29,141)	 9,000,295	 36,996,254	 36,996,254

			   						    

BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2007 (CONTINUED)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
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			   Issued and fully paid ordinary
	           		             shares of RM0.10 each	             Non-distributable		  Distributable	
								        Attributable
					     Share	 Currency		  to equity
			   Number	 Nominal	 premium	 translation	 Retained	 holders of	 Minority	 Total
		  Note	 of shares	      value	 reserve	      reserve	 earnings	  the Company	  interest	 equity

Group		  unit	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

At 1 July 2006		  128,481,000	 12,848,100	 15,177,000	 (29,141)	 9,000,295	 36,996,254	 0	 36,996,254

Currency translation differences,
representing total income and 
expense recognised directly in equity		  0	 0	 0	 (210,488)	 0	 (210,488)	 0	 (210,488)

Net profit for the financial year  		  0	 0	 0	 0	 11,315,112	 11,315,112	 (4,488)	 11,310,624

Total recognised income and 
expense for the year		  0	 0	 0	 (210,488)	 11,315,112	 11,104,624	 (4,488)	 11,100,136

Dividend for financial year ended:

-	 30 June 2006	 13	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (2,588,660)	 (2,588,660)	 0	 (2,588,660)

-	 30 June 2007	 13	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (2,630,220)	 (2,630,220)	 0	 (2,630,220)

Bonus issue	 24	 129,433,000	 12,943,300	 (12,943,300)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0

Issue of ordinary shares:

-	 952,000 ordinary shares of
RM0.10 each issued pursuant to
the ESOS at an issue price of
RM0.60 per ordinary share	 24	 952,000	 95,200	 476,000	 0	 0	 571,200	 0	 571,200

-	 4,737,000 ordinary shares of
RM0.10 each issued pursuant to
the ESOS at an issue price of
RM0.30 per ordinary share	 24	 4,737,000	 473,700	 947,400	 0	 0	 1,421,100	 0	 1,421,100

Share issue expenses in relation to

    the bonus issue		  0	 0	 (62,886)	 0	 0	 (62,886)	 0	 (62,886)

Incorporation of a new subsidiary		  0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 30,000	 30,000

			   ___________	 __________	 _________	 _________	 __________	 __________	 _______	 __________

At 30 June 2007		  263,603,000	 26,360,300	 3,594,214	 (239,629)	 15,096,527	 44,811,412	 25,512	 44,836,924

				       Issued and fully paid ordinary		  Non-
	           			                   shares of RM0.10 each		 distributable	 Distributable
								        Attributable
						      Share		  to equity
				    Number	 Nominal	 premium	 Retained	 holders of
			   Note	 of shares	      value	 reserve	 earnings	 the Company

				    unit	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Company

At 1 July 2005			   75,000,000	 7,500,000	 0	 6,133,839	 13,633,839

Net profit for the financial year  			   0	 0	 0	 6,683,272	 6,683,272

Dividend for financial year ended:

-	 30 June 2005		  13	 0	 0	 0	 (2,040,000)	 (2,040,000)

-	 30 June 2006		  13	 0	 0	 0	 (2,560,400)	 (2,560,400)

Rights issue		  24	 20,400,000	 2,040,000	 0	 0	 2,040,000

Issue of ordinary shares:

-	 32,600,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each issued pursuant 
	to the Initial Public Offering at an issue price of RM0.60 
per ordinary share		  24	 32,600,000	 3,260,000	 16,300,000	 0	 19,560,000

-	 481,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each issued pursuant 
	to the ESOS at an issue price of RM0.60 per ordinary share	 24	 481,000	 48,100	 240,500	 0	 288,600

Share issue expenses in relation to the Initial Public Offering		  0	 0	 (1,363,500)	 0	 (1,363,500)
				    	 	 	 	

At 30 June 2006			   128,481,000	 12,848,100	 15,177,000	 8,216,711	 36,241,811
				    				  

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 (CONTINUED)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 (CONTINUED)
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					          Issued and fully paid ordinary		  Non-
						                  shares of RM0.10 each		distributable	 Distributable
										          Attributable
								        Share		  to equity
						      Number	 Nominal	 premium	 Retained	 holders of
				    	Note	 of shares	      value	 reserve	 earnings	 the Company

						      unit	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Company

At 1 July 2006					     128,481,000	 12,848,100	 15,177,000	 8,216,711	 36,241,811

Net profit for the financial year  			                                                       0                        0                    0         10,633,050         10,633,050

Dividend for financial year ended:

-	 30 June 2006				    13	 0	 0	 0	 (2,588,660)	 (2,588,660)

-	 30 June 2007				    13	 0	 0	 0	 (2,630,220)	 (2,630,220)

Bonus issue				    24	 129,433,000	 12,943,300	 (12,943,300)	 0	 0

Issue of ordinary shares:

-	 952,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each issued pursuant 
	to the ESOS at an issue price of RM0.60 per ordinary share		  24	 952,000	 95,200	 476,000	 0	 571,200

-	 4,737,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each issued pursuant 
	to the ESOS at an issue price of RM0.30 per ordinary share		  24	 4,737,000	 473,700	 947,400	 0	 1,421,100

Share issue expenses in relation to the bonus issue				    0	 0	 (62,886)	 0	 (62,886)

						      	 	 	 	

At 30 June 2007					     263,603,000	 26,360,300	 3,594,214	 13,630,881	 43,585,395

						      				  

	                                	 Group	                                  Company	
		  2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit attributable to equity 
  holders of the Company		  11,315,112	 9,091,328	 10,633,050	 6,683,272

Adjustments for:
Allowance for doubtful debts		  0	 1,303	 0	 192,603
Bad debts written off		  0	 0	 9,475	 30,641
Depreciation of plant and equipment		  6,839,420	 4,377,237	 4,165,882	 3,421,006
Gain on disposal of plant and

equipment (net)		  (235,772)	 (6,718)	 (238,755)	 0
Interest expense		  168,544	 218,356	 157,947	 252,762
Interest income		  (534,576)	 (415,792)	 (427,282)	 (388,746)
Taxation		  (30,999)	 1,669,291	 17,289	 57,000
Net loss attributable to minority 

interest		  (4,488)	 0	 0	 0
Unrealised exchange loss		  211,210	 207,864	 0	 0
Write-off of plant and equipment		  0	 172,296	 0	 73,400
Write-off of set up cost		  0	 413,847	 0	 0
		  	 	 	

Operating profit before
changes in working capital		  17,728,451	 15,729,012	 14,317,606	 10,321,938

Changes in working capital:
Receivables		 (12,310,269)	 (4,006,546)	 (12,278,584)	 (517,608)
Payables		  (2,361,596)	 1,701,240	 (823,616)	 624,054
Intercompany balances		  0	 0	 (2,661,370)	 (6,512,774)
		  	 	 	

Net cash generated from/(used in) 
operations		  3,056,586	 13,423,706	 (1,445,964)	 3,915,610

Interest received		  534,576	 415,792	 427,282	 388,746
Taxation paid		  (3,981,990)	 (143,859)	 (54,264)	 (42,750)
		  	 	 	

Net cash flow (used in)/received 
from operating activities		  (390,828)	 13,695,639	 (1,072,946)	 4,261,606

		  	 	 	

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 (CONTINUED)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

D E L I G H T I N G  Y O U  F O R  1 0  Y E A R S> > >6 2 S C I C O M  •  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 7 < < <6 3

The summary of significant accounting policies and notes on pages 65 to 101 form an integral part 
of the financial statements.



	                                	 Group	     	 Company
	 Note	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
					   
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Incorporation of a new
subsidiary		  0	 0	 (70,000)	 0

Proceeds from disposal of 
interest in a subsidiary		  30,000	 0	 4	 0

Proceeds from disposal of plant
and equipment		  235,772	 132,635	 238,755	 0

Purchase of plant and
equipment		  (9,684,363)	 (6,951,040)	 (4,861,815)	 (2,106,247)

		  	 	 	

Net cash flow used in
investing activities		  (9,418,591)	 (6,818,405)	 (4,693,056)	 (2,106,247)
		  	 	 	

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Al-Bai Bithaman
Ajil Islamic Term Financing		  0	 (298,323)	 0	 0

Repayment of finance lease
principal		  (1,336,076)	 (2,065,036)	 (1,083,055)	 (1,566,667)

Interest paid		  (168,544)	 (218,356)	 (157,947)	 (252,762)
Deposits with a licensed bank		  148,786	 1,600,000	 0	 0
Proceeds from issuance of shares		  1,992,300	 21,888,600	 1,992,300	 21,888,600
Payment of dividends		  (5,218,880)	 (4,600,400)	 (5,218,880)	 (4,600,400)
Payment of share issue expenses		  (62,886)	 (1,363,500)	 (62,886)	 (1,363,500)
		  	 	 	

Net cash flow (used in)/received 
from financing activities		  (4,645,300)	 14,942,985	 (4,530,468)	 14,105,271

		  	 	 	

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN 
CASH AND AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS   	 	(14,454,719)	 21,820,219	 (10,296,470)	 16,260,630

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
ON CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS		  (340,147)	 (491,554)	 0	 0

CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING 
OF FINANCIAL YEAR		  21,971,674	 643,009	 17,077,791	 817,161

		  	 	 	

CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
FINANCIAL YEAR	 20	 7,176,808	 21,971,674	 6,781,321	 17,077,791

		  			 

1	 GENERAL INFORMATION

	 The principal activities of the Company are that of an investment holding company and the 
provision of customer contact centre within the Business Process Outsourcing space.  The Group 
provides customer contact centre outsourcing services, customer services training products as well 
as contact centre consulting and marketing services. The details of the principal activities of the 
subsidiaries are shown in Note 15 to the financial statements.

	 There has been no significant change in the principal activities of the Company and the Group 
during the financial year other than that of a subsidiary, Jade Apple Marketing Pte Ltd (formerly 
known as Scicom Teleservices Pte Ltd) and the incorporation of a new subsidiary, Jade Apple 
Marketing Sdn Bhd, respectively as disclosed in Note 15.

	The Company is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.  
The Company is listed on the MESDAQ Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa 
Securities”). 

	 The address of the registered office of business of the Company is as follows:

	 Level 14, Uptown 1
	 No 1, Jalan SS 21/58
	 Damansara Uptown   
	 47400 Petaling Jaya
	 Selangor Darul Ehsan

	 The address of the principal place of business is as follows:

	 25th Floor, Menara TA One
	 22 Jalan P. Ramlee
	 50250 Kuala Lumpur

2	 BASIS OF PREPARATION

	 The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared under the historical 
cost convention. The financial statements comply with Malaysian Accounting Standards Board 
(“MASB”) approved accounting standards in Malaysia for Entities Other than Private Entities and 
the provisions of the Companies Act 1965.

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) 
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported financial year.  It also requires 
Directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Group’s and the Company’s 
accounting policies.  Although these estimates and judgement are based on the Directors’ best 
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
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(a)	 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are         
effective

	The new accounting standards, amendments to published standards and IC Interpretations 
to existing standards effective for the Group’s and Company’s financial year beginning on or 
after 1 July 2006 are as follows:

•   FRS 1 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
•   FRS 2 Share-based Payment
•   FRS 3 Business Combinations
•   FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements
•   FRS 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
•   FRS 110 Events After the Balance Sheet Date
•   FRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment
•   FRS 121 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
•   FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
•   FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
•   FRS 133 Earnings per Share
•   FRS 136 Impairment of Assets
•   IC Interpretation 115 Operating Leases – Incentives
•   IC Interpretation 121 Income Taxes – Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
•  IC Interpretation 125 Income Taxes – Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity  or its    

Shareholders
•   IC Interpretation 127 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form   

of a Lease

	 All changes in accounting policies have been made in accordance with the transitional 
provisions in the respective standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations.  
All standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Group require retrospective 
application other than:

•	 FRS 2 Retrospective application for all equity instruments granted after 31 December 2004 
and not yet vested at 1 January 2006.

•	 FRS 3 Prospectively for business combinations for which the agreement date is or on after 
1 January 2006.

•	 FRS 116 The exchange of property, plant and equipment is accounted at fair value 
prospectively.

•	 FRS 121 and 138 Prospective accounting for goodwill and fair value adjustments as part of 
foreign operations.

•	 FRS 136 Applies to goodwill and intangible assets acquired in business combinations for 
which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2006, and all other assets prospectively 
from 1 January 2006.

The adoption of the above standards and interpretations has no significant impact on the 
accounting policies and the financial statements of the Group and the Company.

2	 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

	 The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(b)	 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing       
standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

	 The new standards that are mandatory for the Group’s and the Company’s for the next 
financial year or later periods, but which the Group has not early adopted, are as follows:

•   FRS 117 Leases (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 October 2006)

	 Other than the classification of leasehold land as prepaid lease payments, which is not 
applicable to the Group and Company, this standard also re-emphasizes on the criteria for 
determining finance leases, and its related disclosure requirements. The Group will apply 
this standard from financial periods beginning 1 July 2007.

•   FRS 124 Related Party Disclosures (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after  
1 October 2006)

	 This standard will affect the identification of related parties and some other related party 
disclosures. The Group will apply this standard from financial periods beginning 1 July 
2007.

•  FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (effective date yet to be  
determined by the MASB)

	This new standard establishes principles for recognising and measuring financial assets, 
financial liabilities and some contracts to buy and sell non-financial items. Hedge accounting 
is permitted only under strict circumstances.  The Group will apply this standard when 
effective.

	In addition, MASB have issued a number of standards and interpretations that are not 
applicable to the Group. The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the said 
standards will have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements in that period. 

2	 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
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Unless otherwise stated, the following accounting policies have been used consistently in dealing 
with items which are considered material in relation to the financial statements.

	 (a)	 Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost. Where an indication of impairment exists, 
the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount. See accounting policy Note 3(d) on impairment of assets.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and its carrying 
amount is charged/credited to the income statement.

	(b)	 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those corporations in which the Group has power to exercise control over the 
financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

Subsidiaries are consolidated using the acquisition method of accounting. Under the 
acquisition method of accounting, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed during the 
financial year are included from the date of acquisition to the date of disposal.  At the date of 
acquisition, the fair values of the subsidiaries’ identifiable net assets are determined and the 
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the subsidiaries‘ identifiable net assets 
at the date of acquisition is reflected as goodwill on consolidation.

Minority interest is measured at the minorities’ share of the post acquisition fair values of 
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree.  Separate disclosure is made of minority 
interest.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains on intragroup transactions are 
eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered.  Where 
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure 
consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary is the difference between net disposal proceeds 
and the Group’s share of the net assets. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on 
which control is transferred to the Group and are de-consolidated from the date that control 
ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group 
companies are eliminated.  Unrealised losses are also eliminated but considered an impairment 
indicator of the asset transferred.  Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed 
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary is the difference between net disposal proceeds and 
the Group’s share of its net assets as of the date of disposal including the cumulative amount 
of any exchange differences that relate to the subsidiary is recognised in the consolidated 
income statement.

3	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(c)   Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are initially stated at cost, and subsequently at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.  Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the items.

Plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of the assets 
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, summarised as follows:

Furniture and fittings	 20%
Office equipment and computers	 20% - 33 1/3%
Telecommunications equipment	 20% - 33 1/3%
Office renovations	 33 1/3% - 50%
Motor vehicles	 20%

Computer software and development costs with economic benefits exceeding three years are 
capitalised where material.  Computer software costs are amortised on a straight line basis over 
the estimated useful life of the software, which is between three to five years.

Depreciation on capital work-in-progress commences when the assets are ready for their 
intended use.

Residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
balance sheet date.

All repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period 
in which they are incurred.

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication of impairment.  
If such indications exist, an analysis is performed to assess whether the carrying amount of the 
asset is fully recoverable.  A write down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable 
amount.  See accounting policy Note 3(d) on impairment of assets.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount 
and are included in the income statement.

3	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 (CONTINUED)

D E L I G H T I N G  Y O U  F O R  1 0  Y E A R S> > >6 8 S C I C O M  •  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 7 < < <6 9



(d)	 Impairment of assets

Plant and equipment and other assets with finite lives (excluding deferred tax assets and 
prepayments) are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  Non-financial assets with indefinite 
useful lives (such as goodwill) are not subject to amortisation, and are tested annually for 
impairment.  Impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net 
selling price and value in use.  For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at 
the lowest level, for which there is separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating unit).  
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible 
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

The impairment loss is charged to the income statement unless it reverses a previous 
revaluation in which case it is charged to the revaluation surplus.  Any subsequent increase in 
recoverable amount is recognised in the income statement unless it reverses an impairment 
loss on a revalued asset in which case it is taken to revaluation surplus.

	(e)	 Operating leases

Leases of assets under which a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership are 
effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.  Payments made under 
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income 
statement on a straight line basis over the lease period.

(f)	 Finance leases

Leases of plant and equipment where the Group and the Company assumes substantially all 
the benefits and risks of ownership are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the 
leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments.  Each lease payment is 
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a periodic constant rate 
of interest on the outstanding balance.  The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance 
charges are included in borrowings.  The interest element of the finance charge is charged 
to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

3	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g)  Trade receivables

Trade receivables are carried at invoiced amount less an estimate made for doubtful debts.  The 
allowance is established when there is objective evidence that the Group and the Company 
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.  Bad 
debts are written off when identified.

(h)  Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on 
hand, bank balances, deposits held at call with banks, bank overdrafts and short-term, highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
Cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts. Deposits held as pledged 
securities for bank overdrafts are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

(i)   Share capital

(i)   Classification 
      

Ordinary shares with discretionary dividends are classified as equity. 

	 Distributions to holders of a financial instrument classified as an equity instrument are 
charged directly to equity.

(ii)   Share issue costs

External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction, net 
of tax, in equity from the proceeds.

(iii)  Dividends to equity holders of the Company
  
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are 
declared.

       (j)	  Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred.  
In subsequent periods, borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective yield 
method, any difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 
is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings. Interest is reported 
within finance cost in the income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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	 (k)	 Income taxes

Current tax expenses are determined according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the 
Group operates and includes all taxes based upon the taxable profits, including withholding 
taxes payable by a foreign subsidiary on distributions of retained earnings to companies in 
the Group and real property gains taxes payable on disposal of properties (for countries other 
than Malaysia).

Deferred taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences 
arising between the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for tax purposes and their 
carrying amounts in the financial statements.  However, deferred tax is not accounted for if 
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business 
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit 
or loss.

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences or unused tax 
losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising on investment in 
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be 
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax 
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

(l)	 Employee and post-employment benefits

               (i)   Short-term employee benefits

	 Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are accrued in 
the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and 
the Company.

			  (ii)  Post-employment benefits

	 Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive 
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay 
all employees benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

		  The Group makes contributions to post-employment funds under local laws and 
regulations in certain territories. The contributions are charged to the income statement 
in the period in which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has 
no further payment obligations.

3	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(l)   Employee and post-employment benefits (continued)

(iii) 	Share-based compensation

	The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan for the employees 
of the Group, whereby employee services received are exchanged for the grant of share 
options on the Company’s ordinary shares.  However, the fair value of the Group’s share-
based compensation is not recognised as expense in the income statement, as the 
respective share option grants had already vested prior to the effective date of FRS 2, thus 
rendering the standard not applicable to the Group.

(m)	Revenue recognition

	 Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of 
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.  Revenue is shown net of sales taxes, 
rebates and discounts.

	 The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met 
for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered 
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.  The 
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, 
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i)  Sales of services

	 Revenue from rendering of services is based on the stage of completion determined by 
reference to services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

	 If circumstances arise that may change the original estimates of revenues, costs or extent of 
progress toward completion, estimates are revised.  These revisions may result in increases 
or decreases in estimated revenues, or costs and are reflected in income in the period in 
which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

 (ii)	Other operating income

	 Other operating income comprises revenue earned on other services.

(iii) Finance income

	 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis.
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(n)	 Foreign currencies

	 (i)  Functional and presentation currency

		 Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured 
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates 
(the “functional currency”).  The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia 
(“RM”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

	 (ii)	Transactions and balances

	 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the 
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.  Foreign exchange gains and 
losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end 
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
recognised in the income statement.

(iii) Group companies

	 The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the 
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different 
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a)	 assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate 
at the date of that balance sheet;

(b)	 income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange 	
rates 	(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect 
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses 
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(c)	 all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

	 On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in 
foreign operations are taken to shareholders’ equity.  When a foreign operation is partially 
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in 
the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. Fair value adjustments arising on 
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity 
and translated at the closing rate.

3	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o)  Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise.

A financial asset is any asset that is cash, a contractual right to receive cash or another financial 
asset from another enterprise, a contractual right to exchange financial instruments with 
another enterprise under conditions that are potentially favourable, or an equity instrument 
of another enterprise.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another 
financial asset to another enterprise, or to exchange financial instruments with another 
enterprise under conditions that are potentially unfavourable.

(i)  Financial instruments recognised on the balance sheet

The particular recognition method adopted for financial instruments recognised on the 
balance sheet is disclosed in the individual accounting policy notes associated with each 
item.

(ii) Fair value estimation for disclosure purposes

		  In assessing the fair value of other financial instruments, the Group and the Company uses 
a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing 
at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for the specific or similar 
instruments are used for long-term debt. In particular, the fair value of financial liabilities is 
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest 
rate available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

		 The face values of financial assets (less any estimated credit adjustments) and financial 
liabilities with a maturity period of less than one year are assumed to approximate their fair 
values.

(p)  Segment reporting

Segment reporting is presented for enhanced assessment of the Group’s risks and returns.  
Business segments provide services that are subject to risk and returns that are different from 
those of other business segments. Geographical segments provide services within a particular 
economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those 
components operating in other economic environments.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are those amounts resulting from the 
operating activities of a segment that are directly attributable to the segment and the relevant 
portion that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to the segment.  Segment revenue, 
expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before intragroup balances and intragroup 
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent that such 
intragroup balances and transactions are between group enterprises within a single segment.  
Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those available to other parties.
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		 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the Directors and are based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances.

(a)	 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

		 The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.  The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results.  To enhance the information 
content of the estimates, certain key variables that are anticipated to have material impact to 
the Group’s results and financial position are tested for sensitivity to changes in the underlying 
parameters.  The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
outlined below.

	
		 The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.  The resulting accounting 

estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results.  To enhance the information 
content of the estimates, certain key variables that are anticipated to have material impact to 
the Group’s results and financial position are tested for sensitivity to changes in the underlying 
parameters.  The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
outlined below.

(i)	  Deferred tax assets

	 Deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit 
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.  This involves 
judgement regarding the future financial performance of the particular entity in which the 
deferred tax asset has been recognised.

(ii)	 Depreciation of plant and equipment

	 Depreciation is based on the Directors’ estimates of the future average useful lives and 
residual values of the Group’s plant and equipment.  Estimates may change due to 
technological developments, expected level of usage, competition, market conditions 
and other factors, and could impact the estimated average useful lives and the residual 
values of these non-current assets, therefore resulting in future revisions in depreciation 
charges.

	 (b)	 Critical judgement in applying the entity’s accounting policies

		 In determining and applying accounting policies, judgement is often required in respect of 
items where the choice of specific policy could materially affect the reported results and 
financial position of the Group.  Certain accounting policies as disclosed under Note 3 require 
subjective judgement, often as a result of the need to make estimates (as highlighted above 
under Note 4 (a)) about the effect of the matters that are inherently uncertain. 

4	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 5	 SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)	 Business segments

	 The Group is principally involved in a single line of business, namely the provision of customer 
contact centre within the Business Process Outsourcing (“BPO”) space, and as such the 
segment disclosure on business segment are as reported in the income statement and balance 
sheet of the Group. The Group’s business segment operates substantially from Malaysia. 

(b)	 Geographical segments

		 In determining the geographical segments of the Group, revenue is based on the country in 
which the customer is located. There is no inter-segment revenue. Total assets and capital 
expenditure are determined based on where the assets are located.

	 The Group provides services to clients based in the following geographical areas:

		                            		  Total		  Capital 		
			   Revenue		  assets	                  expenditure
		  2007	 2006	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Malaysia*	 4,254,784	 3,116,393	 37,806,611	 34,030,790	 4,925,682	 4,001,115
Singapore	 59,288,369	 47,722,368	 1,436,382	 127	 128,256	 0
United 
Kingdom	 3,945,634	 7,041,056	 19,085	 21,827	 0	 0
United States
  of America	 32,112,897	 15,289,541	 11,203,371	 13,061,693	 4,466,923	 4,686,506
Others	 9,401,052	 4,735,306	 2,238,585	 2,074,540	 163,502	 153,736

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 109,002,736	 77,904,664	 52,704,034	 49,188,977	 9,684,363	 8,841,357
		  						    

	* Group’s home country

6	 REVENUE

	Revenue represents the invoiced value of the following types of services rendered:

		  Group		  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Customer services	 106,470,736	 76,886,721	 77,957,839	 61,627,296
Training and consultancy	 1,596,104	 1,017,943	 0	 0
Loyalty programmes	 935,896	 0	 0	 0
	 	 	 	

	 109,002,736	 77,904,664	 77,957,839	 61,627,296
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7	 RENTAL EXPENSES
 	 Group            	  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Rental:
- Apartments	 863,357	 591,459	 828,465	 561,203
- Offices	 3,392,571	 2,711,474	 2,733,844	 2,121,767
- Office equipment	 605,022	 747,999	 12,700	 157,698
- Others	 13,069	 33,936	 1,500	 6,475
	 	 	 	

	 4,874,019	 4,084,868	 3,576,509	 2,847,143
		  	 	

8	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS COSTS

Salaries and bonuses	 66,232,902	 43,191,749	 40,014,026	 30,721,294
Defined contribution plans	 5,116,078	 3,213,322	 3,378,760	 2,541,697
Other employee benefits	 2,820,083	 1,547,555	 1,130,888	 686,816
	 	 	 	

	 74,169,063	 47,952,626	 44,523,674	 33,949,807
Directors’ remuneration:
- Salaries 	 607,992	 607,992	 607,992	 607,992
	 	 	 	

	 74,777,055	 48,560,618	 45,131,666	 34,557,799
	 	 	 	

The estimated monetary value of benefits-in-kind receivable by a Director of the Group during the 
financial year amounted to RM17,700 (2006: RM20,054).

9	 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

		  Group           	  	  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Auditors’ remuneration:
- PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia	 151,250	 107,000	 88,000	 88,000
- Overseas affiliate of 
    PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia	 17,955	 13,671	 0	 0
- Other auditors	 24,078	 26,076	 0	 0
Directors’ fees	 107,744	 109,406	 106,000	 106,000
Other professional fees	 772,016	 951,359	 322,090	 538,313
Office supplies expenses	 841,713	 714,148	 434,201	 543,988
Recruitment expenses	 315,557	 378,260	 115,881	 227,825
Allowance for doubtful debts	 0	 1,303	 0	 192,603
Bad debts written off	 0	 0	 9,475	 30,641
Marketing expenses	 355,809	 327,995	 288,542	 226,546
Entertainment expenses	 133,071	 129,529	 88,981	 123,163
Immigration expenses	 539,060	 381,864	 533,304	 374,080
Software support	 287,076	 0	 0	 0
Realised exchange (gain)/loss	 (103,912)	 155,559	 (168,190)	 157,903
Unrealised exchange loss	 211,210	 207,864	 0	 0
Gain on disposal of plant and 
  equipment (net)	 (235,772)	 (6,718)	 (238,755)	 0
Write-off of plant and equipment	 0	 172,296	 0	 73,400
Write-off of set up cost	 0	 413,847	 0	 0
Other miscellaneous expenses	 794,867	 163,028	 527,072	 1,472,316

The above charges/(credits) are included under other operating expenses.

10	 NET FINANCE INCOME
	
Fixed deposit interest income	 534,576	 415,792	 427,282	 388,746

Interest expenses:
- finance lease	 (146,464)	 (200,231)	       (135,867)       (242,696)
- bank overdraft	 (5,546)	 (13,660)	           (5,546)         (10,066)                    
- Al-Bai Bithaman Ajil Islamic
      Term Financing	 0	 (4,465)	 0	 0     
- others	 (16,534)	 0	 (16,534)	 0
	 	 	 	
	 366,032	 197,436	 269,335	 135,984
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11 	 TAXATION
	    	 Group	  	 Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Current taxation:
- Malaysian tax	 18,073	 57,000	           17,289           57,000
- foreign tax	 195,133	 1,788,265	 0	 0
Overaccrual in prior year	 (68,484)	 0	 0	 0
Deferred tax (Note 23)	 (175,721)	 (175,974)	 0	 0
	 	 	 	
	 (30,999)	 1,669,291	 17,289	 57,000

The taxation charge for the Company is in respect of interest income. The Company was awarded 
the Multimedia Super Corridor (“MSC”) status on 7 November 2002.  In association with the MSC 
status, the Company was awarded pioneer status which accords the Company with five years of 
income tax exemption on the Company’s statutory income which is renewable for a second five-
year term.

The Malaysian current income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 27% (2006: 28%) of 
the estimated assessable profit for the year, effective year of assessment 2007.  The domestic 
statutory tax rate will be further reduced to 26% effective year of assessment 2008.  The revisions 
of the domestic statutory tax rates do not have any deferred tax implication on the Group as at 
30 June 2007.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The explanation of the relationship between taxation expense and profit before taxation is as 
follows:
 	            	Group	     	 Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 %	 %	 %	 %
Numerical reconciliation between the
  average effective tax rate and the
  Malaysian tax rate:
Malaysian tax rate	 27	 28	 27	 28
Tax effects of:
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes	 1	 5	 2	 3
- Effect of different tax rate from foreign
  subsidiaries	 0	 4	 0	 0
- Income not subject to tax	 (28)	 (21)	 (28)	 (30)
- Overaccrual in prior year	 (1)	 0	 0	 0

Average effective tax rate	 (1)	 16	 1	 1
	 			 

12	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(i)	 Basic earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share of the Group is calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial 
year by the weighted average number of issued ordinary shares during the financial year. The 
weighted average number of issued ordinary shares, and the resulting basic earnings per share 
for the previous financial year has been retrospectively adjusted accordingly to account for the 
bonus shares issued on 13 October 2006.

		                                 		  Group
				    2007	 2006

Net profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders 
  of the Company (RM’000)			   11,315	 9,091

				    	

	 Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares (’000)	 	 261,054	 235,916
				    	

	 Basic earnings per share (sen)		  	 4.33	 3.86
				    	

(ii)	 Diluted earnings per share

	 Diluted earnings per share of the Group is calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial 
year by the adjusted weighted average number of issued ordinary shares during the financial 
year. The weighted average number of issued ordinary shares has been adjusted assuming 
conversion of share options which represents the dilutive potential of the shares. There is only 
one category of dilutive potential ordinary shares, which is share options granted to employees 
under the ESOS. The weighted average number of issued ordinary shares, and the resulting 
diluted earnings per share for the previous financial year has been retrospectively adjusted 
accordingly to account for the bonus shares issued on 13 October 2006.

	                              

	 Net profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders 
	   of the Company (RM’000)			   11,315	 9,091
				    	

	 Weighted average number of issued ordinary shares (’000)		  261,054	 235,916
	 Adjustment for share options granted (‘000)			   4,926	 4,264
				    	

	Adjusted weighted average number of issued ordinary 
  shares for diluted earnings per share (’000)			   265,980	 240,180

				    	

	 Diluted earnings per share (sen)			   4.25	 3.79
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13	DIVIDENDS
   				             Group and Company
			   2007		  2006
		  Gross	 Amount	 Gross	 Amount
		  dividend	 of	 dividend	 of
		  per share	 dividend	 per share	 dividend
		  sen	 RM	 sen	 RM
		

Interim dividend	 1.0	 2,630,220	 2.0	 2,560,400
Final dividend	 0.0	 0	 2.0	 2,588,660

Dividend in respect of the financial year	 1.0	 2,630,220	 4.0	 5,149,060

In addition, the Directors have also proposed a final dividend of 1 sen per ordinary share, tax exempt in respect of the financial year 
ended 30 June 2007 amounting to RM2,636,030 is subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.  The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend.  Such dividend, if approved by 
the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 30 June 2008.

14	  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

			   					     Currency

			   As at		  Reclassi-			   translation	 As at

			   1.7.2006	 Additions	     fications	 Write-offs	 Disposals	 differences	 30.6.2007

			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

2007

Group

At cost

Furniture and fittings		  2,061,919	 413,012	 (30,590)	 0	 0	 (8)	 2,444,333

Office equipment and computers		  11,008,083	 1,461,082	 2,178,820	 (58,594)	 (106,793)	 (26,269)	 14,456,329

Telecommunications equipment		  3,736,589	 1,669,704	 3,728,237	 0	 0	 (193,321)	 8,941,209

Software		  4,488,151	 1,078,903	 902,751	 0	 (5,036)	 (16,375)	 6,448,394

Office renovations		  2,590,812	 559,496	 1,238,989	 0	 0	 (42,724)	 4,346,573

Motor vehicles		  1,144,089	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 1,144,089

Capital work-in-progress		  3,654,493	 4,502,166	 (8,018,207)	 0	 0	 (135,547)	 2,905

			   	 	 	 	 	 	

			   28,684,136	 9,684,363	 0	 (58,594)	 (111,829)	 (414,244)	 37,783,832

			   						    

14	 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

				    Charge for the				    Currency

			   As at	 financial	 Reclassi-			   translation	 As at

			   1.7.2006	                year	     fications	 Write-offs	 Disposals	 differences	 30.6.2007

			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Accumulated depreciation

Furniture and fittings		  1,251,774	 403,456	 (18,737)	 0	 0	 (8)	 1,636,485

Office equipment and computers		  4,872,980	 3,291,760	 (842,687)	 (58,594)	 (106,039)	 (29,774)	 7,127,646

Telecommunications equipment		  1,926,650	 862,692	 0	 0	 0	 (61,793)	 2,727,549

Software		  2,033,964	 1,135,442	 861,424	 0	 (2,754)	 (1,509)	 4,026,567

Office renovations		  2,113,318	 987,550	 0	 0	 0	 (13,446)	 3,087,422

Motor vehicles		  679,925	 158,520	 0	 0	 0	 0	 838,445

			   	 	 	 	 	 	

			   12,878,611	 6,839,420	 0	 (58,594)	 (108,793)	 (106,530)	 19,444,114

			   						    

					     			   Currency

			   As at		  Reclassi-			   translation	 As at

			   1.7.2005	 Additions	     fications	 Write-offs	 Disposals	 differences	 30.6.2006

			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

2006

Group

At cost

Furniture and fittings		  2,003,480	 112,350	 0	 0	 0	 (53,911)	 2,061,919

Office equipment and computers		  10,102,567	 1,321,674	 39,069	 (349,045)	 0	 (106,182)	 11,008,083

Telecommunications equipment		  2,457,452	 1,284,465	 0	 0	 0	 (5,328)	 3,736,589

Software		  3,173,745	 1,496,932	 0	 (146,800)	 0	 (35,726)	 4,488,151

Office renovations		  2,054,091	 557,606	 0	 0	 0	 (20,885)	 2,590,812

Motor vehicles		  994,089	 385,000	 0	 0	 (235,000)	 0	 1,144,089

Capital work-in-progress		  39,069	 3,683,330	 (39,069)	 0	 0	 (28,837)	 3,654,493

			   	 	 	 	 	 	

			   20,824,493	 8,841,357	 0	 (495,845)	 (235,000)	 (250,869)	 28,684,136

			   						    

2007

Group
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14  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

				    Charge for the				    Currency

			   As at	 financial	 Reclassi-			   translation	 As at

			   1.7.2005	                year	     fications	 Write-offs	 Disposals	 differences	 30.6.2006

			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Accumulated depreciation

Furniture and fittings		  912,089	 357,751	 0	 0	 0	 (18,066)	 1,251,774

Office equipment and computers		  3,283,253	 1,894,791	 0	 (250,149)	 0	 (54,915)	 4,872,980

Telecommunications equipment		  1,335,959	 591,294	 0	 0	 0	 (603)	 1,926,650

Software		  1,261,277	 862,512	 0	 (73,400)	 0	 (16,425)	 2,033,964

Office renovations		  1,637,686	 494,322	 0	 0	 0	 (18,690)	 2,113,318

Motor vehicles		  612,441	 176,567	 0	 0	 (109,083)	 0	 679,925

			   9,042,705	 4,377,237	 0	 (323,549)	 (109,083)	 (108,699)	 12,878,611

								        2007	 2006

								        RM	 RM

Net book value

Furniture and fittings							       807,848	 810,145

Office equipment and computers							       7,328,683	 6,135,103

Telecommunications equipment							       6,213,660	 1,809,939

Software							       2,421,827	 2,454,187

Office renovations							       1,259,151	 477,494

Motor vehicles							       305,644	 464,164

Capital work-in-progress							       2,905	 3,654,493

								        __________	 __________

								        18,339,718	 15,805,525

2006

Group

Group

14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

		  As at		  Disposals/	 Reclassi-	 As at
		  1.7.2006	 Additions	 Write-offs	 fications	 30.6.2007
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

2007
Company
At cost

Furniture and fittings	 935,847	 393,796	 0	 (30,590)	 1,299,053
Office equipment and
  computers	 6,398,349	 1,302,619	 (58,594)	 (470,092)	 7,172,282
Telecommunications
  equipment	 2,732,200	 1,671,676	 0	 0	 4,403,876
Software	 3,553,923	 968,054	 0	 500,682	 5,022,659
Office renovations	 1,557,887	 525,670	 0	 0	 2,083,557
Motor vehicles	 387,174	 0	 0	 0	 387,174

	 15,565,380	 4,861,815	 (58,594)	 0	 20,368,601

		  Charge
		  for the
	 As at	 financial	 Disposals/	 Reclassi-	 As at
	 1.7.2006	        year	 Write-offs	 fications	 30.6.2007
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Accumulated depreciation

Furniture and fittings	 392,697	 301,627	 0	 (18,737)	 675,587
Office equipment and
  computers	 1,567,769	 2,018,679	 (58,594)	 (839,107)	 2,688,747
Telecommunications
  equipment	 1,784,614	 234,039	 0	 0	 2,018,653
Software	 1,177,391	 946,706	 0	 857,844	 2,981,941
Office renovations	 1,080,392	 586,325	 0	 0	 1,666,717
Motor vehicles	 71,172	 78,506	 0	 0	 149,678

	
		  6,074,035	 4,165,882	 (58,594)	 0	 10,181,323
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14	 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

		  As at		  Disposals/	 As at
		  1.7.2005	 Additions	 Write-offs	 30.6.2006
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
2006
Company
At cost

Furniture and fittings		  856,310	 79,537	 0	 935,847
Office equipment and computers		  5,212,045	 1,186,304	 0	 6,398,349
Telecommunications equipment		  2,404,390	 327,810	 0	  2,732,200
Software		  2,240,416	 1,460,307	 (146,800)	 3,553,923
Office renovations		  1,000,281	 557,606	 0	 1,557,887
Motor vehicles		  2,174	 385,000	 0	 387,174
		  	 	 	

		  11,715,616	 3,996,564	 (146,800)	 15,565,380

			   Charge
			   for the
		  As at	 financial	 Disposals/	 As at
		  1.7.2005	        year 	  Write-offs	 30.6.2006
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Accumulated depreciation

Furniture and fittings		  138,895	 253,802	 0	 392,697
Office equipment and computers		  234,039	 1,333,730	 0	 1,567,769
Telecommunications equipment		  1,334,900	 449,714	 0	  1,784,614
Software		  373,657	 877,134	 (73,400)	 1,177,391
Office renovations		  644,777	 435,615	 0	 1,080,392
Motor vehicles		  161	 71,011	 0	 71,172
		  	 	 	

		  2,726,429	 3,421,006	 (73,400)	 6,074,035

				  
				    2007	 2006
				    RM	 RM
Net book value

Furniture and fittings				    623,466	 543,150
Office equipment and computers				    4,483,535	 4,830,580
Telecommunications equipment				    2,385,223	 947,586
Software				    2,040,718	 2,376,532
Office renovations				    416,840	 477,495
Motor vehicles				    237,496	 316,002
				    	

				    10,187,278	 9,491,345

14	  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

	Net book values of plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are as follows:

		  Group               		  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Office equipment and computers	 711,484	 1,088,129	 711,484	 1,088,129
Telecommunications equipment	 699,822	 1,143,753	 699,822	 1,143,753
Software	 580,907	 773,810	 580,907	 773,810
Motor vehicles	 237,417	 462,579	 237,417	 314,417
	 	 	 	

	 2,229,630	 3,468,271	 2,229,630	 3,320,109
	 			 

15  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
					     Company
				    2007	 2006
				    RM	 RM

Unquoted shares at cost				    645,986	 575,990
				    	

	Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name		 Group’s effective interest 	 Principal activities
		  2007	 2006
		  %	 %
Incorporated in Malaysia

Scicom (Academy) Sdn Bhd *		  100	 100	 Provides customer service 
				    training products as well as 
				    contact centre consulting and 
				    marketing services.

Jade Apple Marketing Sdn Bhd * #		 70	 0	 Investment holding.

Incorporated in India

Scicom Contact Centre Services
Private Limited ^		  100	 100	 Provides customer contact 

				    centre outsourcing services.

Incorporated in United Kingdom

Scicom International 
(UK) Ltd *		  100	 100	 Investment holding.
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15  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name	 Group’s effective interest	 Principal activities
	 2007	 2006
	 %	 %
Incorporated in Singapore

Subsidiary of Jade Apple Marketing 
  Sdn Bhd

Jade Apple Marketing Pte Ltd 
  (formerly known as Scicom 
  Teleservices Pte Ltd) ** ##	 70	 100	    Provides consultancy and training
			      services as well as manage loyalty
			      programmes.

Incorporated in United
  States of America

Subsidiary of Scicom International
  (UK) Ltd

Scicom Inc *	 100	 100	    Provides customer contact
				      centre outsourcing services.

	
*	 Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia.

**	 Audited by member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited which are separate 
and independent legal entities from PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia.

^	 Audited by a firm other than PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia and its affiliates.

#	 On 29 November 2006, the Company paid RM70,000 in cash to subscribe for 70% equity 
interest in this newly incorporated company.

##	 On 29 November 2006, the Company had transferred its 100% interest in Jade Apple 
Marketing Pte Ltd, to its newly incorporated subsidiary, Jade Apple Marketing Sdn Bhd, in 
which the Group has a 70% interest, which resulted in the Group’s effective interest in Jade 
Apple Marketing Pte Ltd decreased to 70%.

16  TRADE RECEIVABLES

		  Group               		  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Trade receivables	 19,861,033	 8,386,897	 16,050,503	 4,517,230
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts	 0	 (1,303)	 0	 (1,303)
	 	 	 	

	 19,861,033	 8,385,594	 16,050,503	 4,515,927
		  	 	

The currency exposure profile of trade 
   receivables is as follows:
- RM	 1,752,930	 1,894,671	      1,192,849       1,624,010
- United States Dollar (“USD”)	 11,733,931	 5,105,987	      9,439,280       1,553,981
- Singapore Dollar (“SGD”)	 3,667,298	 0	 2,711,500	     0
- Euro	 1,960,051	 660,455	      1,960,051          613,455
- British Pound Sterling (“GBP”)	 384,419	 724,481	         384,419          724,481
- Australian Dollar (“AUD”)	 362,404	 0	 362,404	 0
	 	 	 	 	
	 19,861,033	 8,385,594	 16,050,503	 4,515,927
		  	 	

Credit terms of trade receivables range from 60 to 90 days (2006: 30 to 90 days).

17	 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Deposits	 2,026,249	 1,806,429	 1,445,538	 1,238,108
Other receivables	 724,389	 293,030	 672,002	 266,599
Income tax recoverable	 2,469,216	 17,449	 22,725	 0
	 	 	 	 	
	 5,219,854	 2,116,908	 2,140,265	 1,504,707
Prepayments	 1,177,202	 739,184	 544,423	 413,248
	 	 	 	

	 6,397,056	 2,856,092	 2,684,688	 1,917,955
		  	 	

The currency exposure profile of deposits
  and other receivables is as follows:
- RM	 2,277,948	 1,274,424	      2,125,346      1,256,975
- USD	 2,354,455	 293,088	 13,688	 247,732
- SGD	 27,874	 0	 1,231	 0
- Indian Rupee (“INR”)	 540,594	 531,534	 0	 0
- GBP	 18,983	 17,862	 0	 0
	 	 	 	

	 5,219,854	 2,116,908	 2,140,265	 1,504,707
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18  	AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

		  Group
	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM
Amounts due from subsidiaries	 12,654,737	 9,998,790
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts	 (516,542)	 (516,542)
	 	
	 12,138,195	 9,482,248
	 	
Amount due to a subsidiary	 (4,052)	 0
	 	

The currency exposure profile of 
  intercompany balances is as follows:
- RM	 11,679,227	 9,482,248
- USD	 454,916	 0
	 	
	 12,134,143	 9,482,248
		

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of 
repayment.

19	  DEPOSITS WITH A LICENCED BANK

		  Group               		  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Deposits with a licensed bank	 7,632,194	 16,334,058	 7,466,153	 16,185,272
				  

	Deposits with a licensed bank of RM148,786 in the previous financial year were pledged for 
banking facilities granted to subsidiaries of the Company.

The weighted average maturity days of placement of funds with a licensed bank are as follows:

		  Group
	 2007	 2006
	 Days	 Days
Deposits with a licensed bank	 446	 457

20  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
			   Group               		  Company

	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Cash and bank balances	 277,006	 5,786,402	 47,560	 892,519
Deposits with a licensed bank	 7,632,194	 16,334,058	 7,466,153	 16,185,272
Deposits pledged for banking facilities 

granted to subsidiaries	 0	 (148,786)	 0	 0
Bank overdraft (Note 22)	 (732,392)	 0	 (732,392)	 0
	 	 	 	

	 7,176,808	 21,971,674	 6,781,321	 17,077,791
	 	 	 	

The currency exposure profile of cash 
  and cash equivalents is as follows:
- RM	 6,846,806	 16,386,188	      6,753,484    16,261,503
- USD	 72,917	 5,567,016	 27,837	 0
- INR	 233,683	 18,222	 0	 816,288
- SGD	 23,300	 127	 0	 0
- GBP	 102	 121	 0	 0
	 	 	 	

	 7,176,808	 21,971,674	 6,781,321	 17,077,791
		  	 	

The weighted average interest rate of bank balances that was effective at the financial year end   
is as follows:
			 
		  Group
	 2007	 2006
	 %	 %
Bank balances  	 4.46	 4.46
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21	 PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
		  Group               		  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Current
Trade payables	 1,776,615	 897,204	 1,754,112	 476,074
Accruals	 890,500	 1,294,531	 369,115	 1,247,141
Performance-related bonus	 1,294,530	 1,836,337	 783,397	 1,225,896
Other payroll-related liabilities	 1,346,569	 2,215,232	 765,109	 574,018
Other payables	 243,034	 1,639,846	 66,078	 1,038,298
	 	 	 	 	
	 5,551,248	 7,883,150	 3,737,811	 4,561,427
	 	 	 	

Non-current
Accruals	 4,774	 34,468	 0	 0
	 	 	 	 	
	 5,556,022	 7,917,618	 3,737,811	 4,561,427
	 	 	 	

The currency exposure profile of 
  payables and accruals is as follows:
- RM	 3,361,356	 4,459,657	      3,136,081      4,183,324
- USD	 1,446,560	 2,540,924	 568,466	 362,302
- INR	 606,842	 824,124	 0	 0
- SGD	 93,018	 61,824	 25,000	 15,801
- GBP	 48,246	 31,089	 8,264	 0
	 	 	 	

	 5,556,022	 7,917,618	 3,737,811	 4,561,427
		  	 	

	Credit terms of trade payables range from cash-basis to 120 days (2006: 30 to 120 days).

22	  BORROWINGS (SECURED AND INTEREST-BEARING)

		  Group		  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Current
Finance lease liabilities 	 945,887	 1,260,472	 945,887	 1,174,104
Bank overdraft (Note 20)	 732,392	 0	 732,392	 0
	 	 	 	

	 1,678,279	 1,260,472	 1,678,279	 1,174,104
	 	 	 	

Non-current
Finance lease liabilities	 214,826	 1,236,317	 214,826	 1,069,664
	 	 	 	

	 1,893,105	 2,496,789	 1,893,105	 2,243,768
	 	 	 	

22  	BORROWINGS (SECURED AND INTEREST-BEARING) (CONTINUED)

		  Group               		  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Maturity profile of borrowings:
- not later than one year	 1,678,279	 1,260,472	 1,678,279	 1,174,104
- later than one year and not later

  than five years 	 214,826	 1,236,317	 214,826	 1,069,664
	 	 	 	 	
	 1,893,105	 2,496,789	 1,893,105	 2,243,768
	 	 	 	

	All borrowings are denominated in RM, which also represents the Company’s functional currency.

Bank overdraft

The Company was granted a bank overdraft facility amounting to RM2.6million on 4 August 2005. 
The bank overdraft is to be utilised for working capital purposes. 

(a)	 The bank overdraft is secured by debentures over all fixed and floating assets of the Company 
in respect of general banking facilities owing from time to time including future advances with 
unlimited covenant to pay on the part of the Company up-stamped at ad valorem duty to 
secure RM2,600,000.

(b)	 The covenants underlying this facility are:

•	 The Company maximum gearing ratio at 2:1 at any one time;

•	 The Company must not provide advances to directors/shareholders without the bank’s 
consent in writing; and

•	 The Company’s Tangible Networth must be at least RM10,000,000 at all time.

		 The effective interest rate of the bank overdraft as at the balance sheet date is 9.25% 
(2006: 8.75%) per annum.

Finance lease liabilities

	Finance lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor 
in the event of default.

The effective interest rates of the finance lease liabilities as at the balance sheet date ranged from 
4.37% to 14.96% (2006: 4.37%to 14.96%).
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22	  BORROWINGS (SECURED AND INTEREST-BEARING) (CONTINUED)

	The minimum lease payments to the Group and the Company at the balance sheet date are as 
follows:
		  Group		  Company
	 2007	 2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM
Minimum lease payments:
- not later than one year	 1,043,724	 1,473,941	 1,043,724	 1,373,121
- later than one year and not later

than five years	 225,413	 1,357,823	 225,413	 1,176,981
	 	 	 	
	 1,269,137	 2,831,764	 1,269,137	 2,550,102

Future finance charges on finance leases	 (63,283)	 (251,939)	 (63,283)	 (223,298)
Future maintenance charges on finance
  leases	 (45,141)	 (83,036)	 (45,141)	 (83,036)
	 	 	 	

Present value of finance lease liabilities	 1,160,713	 2,496,789	 1,160,713	 2,243,768
	 			 

23  DEFERRED TAXATION

	Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same authority. 
The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

		  Group
	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM
Deferred tax assets	 197,027	 21,306
	 	

At beginning of financial year	 21,306	 (154,668)
Credited/(charged) to income statement (Note 11):
- plant and equipment and intangible assets	 (322,222)	 (51,505)
- tax losses	 496,758	 0
- provisions	 1,185	 227,479

	 175,721	 175,974
	 	

At end of financial year	 197,027	 21,306

23  	DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)
		  Group
	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM
Deferred tax assets (before offsetting)
- tax losses	 496,758	 0
- provisions	 161,934	 250,579
	 	 	
	 658,692	 250,579
Offsetting	 (461,665)	 (229,273)
	 	
Deferred tax assets (after offsetting)	 197,027	 21,306
	 	

Deferred tax liabilities (before offsetting)
- plant and equipment and intangible assets	 (461,665)	 (229,273)
Offsetting	 461,665	 229,273
	 	
Deferred tax liabilities (after offsetting)	 0	 0

24  SHARE CAPITAL

(a)	 Share capital
			   Company

		  2007	 2006
		  RM	 RM
	        Authorised ordinary shares of RM0.10 each:
	        At beginning of financial year	 25,000,000	 25,000,000
	        Created during the financial year	 75,000,000	 0
		  	
	        At end of financial year	 100,000,000	 25,000,000
		  	
	         

	 Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of RM0.10 each:
	        At beginning of financial year	 12,848,100	 7,500,000
	        Bonus shares issued during the financial year	 12,943,300	 0
 	        Issued during the financial year:
             - Rights issue of shares 	 0	 2,040,000
             - Initial Public Offering	 0	 3,260,000
             - ESOS	 568,900	 48,100
		  	
	        At end of financial year	 26,360,300	 12,848,100
		  	

	 On 13 October 2006 (“the bonus issue date”), the Company completed a bonus issue of 
129,433,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each on the basis of one new ordinary share 
for every existing ordinary share held in the Company, by way of capitalisation of the share 
premium reserve.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 (CONTINUED)

D E L I G H T I N G  Y O U  F O R  1 0  Y E A R S> > >9 4 S C I C O M  •  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 0 7 < < <9 5



24  SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
	

(a)	Share capital (continued)

During the year, the following new ordinary shares were issued by the Company for cash by 
		 virtue of the exercise of options pursuant to the Company’s ESOS:

• 	952,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each at an exercise price of RM0.60; and

• 	4,737,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each at an exercise price of RM0.30.

(b)		Employee Share Option Scheme 

	The ESOS was implemented on 23 September 2005 for the benefit of eligible employees and
Directors of the Group and of the Company.

	The ESOS Committee comprising certain appointed Directors was set up to administer the ESOS, 
who may from time to time offer share options to eligible employees and Directors of the Group 
and the Company to subscribe for new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in the Company.

	The salient features of the ESOS are as follows:

• 	The total number of ordinary shares to be issued by the Company under the ESOS shall not 
e	xceed 10% of the total issued and paid-up ordinary shares of the Company, such that not 
more than 50% of the shares available under the ESOS is allocated, in aggregate, to directors 
and senior management;

•	 Not more than 10% of the total shares available under the ESOS is allocated to any eligible 
employee of the Group who either singly or collectively through persons connected with the 
Executive Director or employee concerned holds 20% or more of the issued and paid-up share 
capital of the Company;

•	 Only Employees confirmed in service at the Date of Offer which fall under one of the categories 
of Eligible Employees listed in By-Law 6.1, shall be eligible to participate in the Scheme;

•	The Subscription Price of each share comprised in any Offer made in conjunction with the  
		 Company’s listing on the MESDAQ Market of Bursa Securities shall be at the initial public 
	 offer price of RM0.60 per ordinary share. In respect of any Offer made subsequently to the 
	 Company’s listing, the Subscription Price of each share will be at a discount of not more than 
	 ten per centum (10%) to the weighted average market price of the shares for the five Market 
	 Days immediately preceding the Date of Offer and the price so determined shall not be less 
	 than the par value of the shares;

•	 The shares to be allotted upon the exercise of any Options will, upon allotment and issue, rank 
pari passu in all respects with the existing issued and paid-up ordinary shares of the Company, 
except that the new shares will not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments or other 
distributions, the Entitlement Date of which is prior to the date of allotment of the said shares. 
The new shares will be subject to all the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company;

24  SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
	

(b)	 Employee Share Option Scheme (continued)

• 	The options granted are exercisable at the end of each quarter beginning from the first 
quarter after grant date and have a contractual option term between two to five years 
dependent on the employees’ banding. The employees’ entitlements to the options are vested 
as soon as they are granted; and

• 	In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of the Company during the Option 
period, whether by way of rights issue, bonus issue or other capitalisation issue, consolidation 
or subdivision of Scicom Shares or reduction of capital or otherwise howsoever, the Company 
shall cause such adjustment to be made to:

a) the number of Options granted to each Grantee (excluding Options already exercised); and/or

b) the subscription price

	for purposes of ensuring that the capital outlay to be incurred by a Grantee in subscribing 
for the same proportion of the issued capital of the Company as that to which he was 
entitled prior to the event giving rise to such adjustment (not taking into account Options 
already exercised) shall remain unaffected.

	The movements during the financial year in the number of options over the ordinary shares 
of RM0.10 each in the Company are as follows:

			    	  Number of options over ordinary shares of RM0.10
						              each in the Company
		  Expiry	 As at 1	 Adjust-			   As at 30
	 Grant date	 date    	June 2006	 ment *	 Exercised	 Retired	 June 2007
			   ‘000	 ‘000	 ‘000	           ‘000             ‘000
	 2007

	 23.9.2005	 22.9.2010	 4,960	 4,099	 (3,331)	 (178)	 5,550
	 23.9.2005	 22.9.2008	 2,717	 2,191	 (2,208)	 (511)	 2,189
	 23.9.2005	 22.9.2007	 205	 215	 (150)	 (20)	 250
			   	 	 	 	
			   7,882	 6,505	 (5,689)	 (709)	 7,989
			   				     

*	 The Company made an adjustment to the number and subscription price of the existing 
share options in accordance with the requirements of Articles 15.1 and 15.3 respectively of 
the ESOS By-Laws, which requires the share options to be adjusted if the Company alters 
its capital structure by way of bonus issue. The adjustment resulted in the subscription 
price for the options being revised to RM0.30 per ordinary share, and the total number 
of share options were adjusted based on any unexercised options as at the date of the 
bonus shares issued. There were no share options granted during the financial year. 

										        
										         2007	 2006
	

	Number of share options vested as at the 
	  balance sheet date (‘000)								      8,698	 8,363
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24  SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)	

(b) Employee Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details relating to options over ordinary shares of RM0.10 each exercised during the financial 
year were as follows:

				  
			   Number of	 Number of

Exercise date	 Fair value of shares	 Exercise price 	 share issued
	 RM per share	 RM per share	 ‘000

31 July 2006	 0.92	 0.60	 952
31 October 2006	 0.66	 0.30	 1,867
31 January 2007	 0.62	 0.30	 2,289
4 May 2007	 0.55	 0.30	 581	

				  
			   5,689
			 

The share options over ordinary shares of RM0.10 each exercised during the year and the fair 
value, at exercise date, of shares issued are as follows:

		
	 Group and Company

	 2007
	 RM

Ordinary share capital at par	 568,900 
      Share premium	 1,423,400

	
Proceeds received on exercise of share options	 1,992,300
	
Fair value at exercise date of shares issued	 3,846,790
	

25  RETAINED EARNINGS

	 Subject to agreement by the tax authorities, the Company has tax exempt income under the 
Promotion of Investments Act, 1986 and tax credit under Section 108 of the Malaysian Income Tax 
Act 1967 of RM21,202,331 (2006: RM14,936,306) and RM97,014 (2006: RM42,750) respectively, 
to frank dividends out of its entire retained earnings.

26	 COMMITMENTS

       (a)  Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure authorised by the Directors not provided for in the financial statements 
are as follows:

				     Group		  Company
	 2007	    2006	 2007	 2006
	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

		  Authorised and contracted:
	 - Plant and equipment	 674,606	 4,719,210	 616,627	 1,512,002

	 Authorised but not contracted:
	 - Plant and equipment	 11,364	 497,412	 0	 0

					     	

       (b)  	Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

	       The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
 
	 - not later than one year	 3,705,563	 3,583,658	 3,262,541	 2,734,246

	 - later than one year and not later
	      than five years	 1,047,112	 1,112,431	 1,022,206	 929,979
	 	 	 	
	 4,752,675	 4,696,089	 4,284,747	 3,664,225
	 		  	

27	 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

	 On 17 July 2007, the Company had entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with 
PT Infomedia Nusantara (“Infomedia”), a company incorporated in Republic of Indonesia, whereby 
Infomedia wishes to further develop its call centre business and has identified the Company as a 
party which can provide the necessary operational, technical and strategic input to further develop 
its business. The MOU is valid for one year from the date of signing. 

	 The Board of Directors is of the opinion that that the MOU provides the Group an opportunity 
to participate in Indonesia’s growing BPO industry. The MOU does not require approvals from the 
Company’s shareholders and/or other authorities. 

	 The above event does not have any material effect on the Group’s and the Company’s financial 
statements for the financial year.
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28	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s and the Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit 
risk, liquidity risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk.  The Group’s and the Company’s 
overall financial risk management objective is to minimise any potential adverse effects on the 
financial performance of the Group and the Company.

(a)  Credit risk

	Credit risk arises from sales made on deferred credit terms. The Group and the Company 
manage this risk by monitoring credit ratings and limiting the aggregate financial exposure 
to any individual company within the Group.  The Group and the Company extend credit to 
customers based on evaluation of the customer’s financial position or creditworthiness. The 
Group and the Company do not expect any third parties to fail to meet their obligations.

	Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are to a few customers.  The 
Group and the Company’s historical experience in collection of trade receivables falls within 
recorded allowances, where needed. Management believes that no additional credit risk 
beyond amounts provided for doubtful debts is inherent in the Group’s and the Company’s 
trade receivables.

(b)  Liquidity risk

	The Group and the Company practise prudent liquidity risk management to minimise the 
mismatch of financial assets and liabilities and to maintain sufficient funding requirements for 
working capital purposes.  The Group and the Company aims to maintain flexibility in funding 
by keeping a committed overdraft facility available (see Note 22).

(c)  Currency risk

	The Group and the Company operate internationally and are exposed to fluctuation in 
various currencies, mainly the USD, SGD, INR, GBP, Euro and AUD. The Group has potential 
foreign exchange exposure in net investments in its foreign subsidiaries and in those financial 
instruments denominated in foreign currencies. 

	The Group and the Company are also exposed to foreign exchange risk on sales and purchases 
that are denominated in a currency other than RM.  The Group and the Company manage this 
risk by pegging most material contracts with its customers to the RM.

	The currency exposure of unhedged financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and 
the Company that are not denominated in the functional currency of the respective companies 
is set out under their respective Notes.

28	  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)  Interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk

	The Group’s exposure to risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 
changes in market interest rates can be seen in Note 28(e).

Cash flow interest rate risk

	The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is limited to its financing through 
finance lease facilities. It is the Group’s policy to source for the most favourable interest rate 
available. 

	The Group’s surplus funds are deposited with licensed financial institutions at the most 
favourable interest rate.

(e)  Fair values

	The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company at the 
balance sheet date approximated their fair values except as set out below:

	
				                    	Group and Company
					     Carrying	 Fair
				     	 amount	 value
					     RM	 RM

Finance lease liabilities 
 	          (non-current portion)				    1,176,981	 1,048,572
				    		

	In assessing the fair values of finance lease liabilities, the discounted cash flow method was 
applied using their prevailing effective interest rates.

29	 NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The principal non-cash transactions of the Group and the Company is that certain plant and 
equipment amounting to RM1,890,317 were purchased in the previous financial year by way of 
finance lease facilities. 

30	 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	The financial statements have been approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board 
of Directors on 9 August 2007.
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We, Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam and Krishnan Menon, being the Directors of Scicom (MSC) Berhad, state 
that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 56 to 101 are drawn up 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 30 June 
2007 and of its results and cash flows of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended on 
that date in accordance with MASB approved accounting standards in Malaysia for Entities Other than 
Private Entities and the provisions of the Companies Act 1965.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with their resolution dated 9 August 2007.

LEO SURESH ARIYANAYAKAM			  KRISHNAN MENON
DIRECTOR			  DIRECTOR

Kuala Lumpur

I, Jayakumar A/L Narayana Pillai Sreedharan Nair, the Officer primarily responsible for the financial 
management of Scicom (MSC) Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements 
set out on pages 56 to 101 are, to the best of my knowledge and behalf, correct and I make this 
solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the 
Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

JAYAKUMAR A/L NARAYANA PILLAI SREEDHARAN NAIR
OFFICER

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above named Jayakumar A/L Narayana Pillai Sreedharan Nair 
at Kuala Lumpur in Malaysia on 9 August 2007, before me.

ROBERT LIM HOCK KEE (No. W092)

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS

STATEMENT BY 
DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 169(15) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT 1965
 

STATUTORY 
DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 169(16) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT 1965

We have audited the financial statements set out on pages 56 to 101.  These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Company’s Directors.  It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, 
based on our audit, on these financial statements and to report our opinion to you, as a body, in 
accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act 1965 and for no other purpose.

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved auditing standards in Malaysia. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

In our opinion:

(a)	 the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act 1965 and MASB approved accounting standards in Malaysia for Entities Other than Private 
Entities so as to give a true and fair view of:

(i)	 the matters required by Section 169 of the Companies Act 1965 to be dealt with in the financial 
statements; and 

(ii)	the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 30 June 2007 and of its results and cash 
flows of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended on that date;

and

(b)	 the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company 
and by the subsidiaries of which we acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act.

We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ report of the subsidiaries of which we 
have not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 15 to the financial statements.

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the 
Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of 
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and we have received satisfactory information 
and explanations required by us for those purposes.

The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification 
and did not include any comment made under subsection 3 of Section 174 of the Act.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS				   ERIC OOI LIP AUN
(No. AF: 1146)				   (No. 1517/06/08 (J))
Chartered Accountants				   Partner of the firm

Kuala Lumpur
9 August 2007

STATUTORY DECLARATION
SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1965

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS
OF SCICOM (MSC) BERHAD (Company No. 597426-H)
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

The information set out below is disclosed in compliance with the Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Securities:

1.	 STATUS OF UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM CORPORATE PROPOSALS

	 The IPO proceeds were received on 28 September 2005. The amount of RM19,560,000 
was derived from the issuance of 32,600,000 ordinary shares at RM0.60 per share. As 
at 8 August 2007, the details of the utilisation of the IPO proceeds are as follows:

		  Proposed	 Amount	 Transfer*	 Amount	 Expected 	
		  utilisation	 utilised as at		  outstanding	 timeframe for 	
		  proceeds*	 08.08.2007			   utilisation*

			   RM’000	 RM’000	 RM’000	 RM’000

Working capital	 13,060	 (13,196)	 136	 0	 12 months from 
						      listing date

Capital expenditure	 5,000	 (5,000)	 0	 0	 24 months from 
						      listing date

Share issue expenses	 1,500	 (1,364)	 (136)	 0	 3 months from 
						      listing date 

		  19,560	 (19,560)	 0	 0

* 	 Proposed utilisation as set out in Scicom’s prospectus dated 7 September 2005.
**	 The unutilised share issue expenses of RM136,000 had been transferred to be utilised for working 

capital purposes.

2.	 SHARE BUY-BACK

	 The Company does not have a scheme to buy back its own shares.

3.	 OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES EXERCISED

	 The Company does not have any warrants or convertible securities in issue. For the 
financial year ended 30 June 2007, a total 5,689,000 ordinary shares have been 
exercised under the Company’s ESOS.

4.	 DEPOSITORY RECEIPT PROGRAMME

	 The Company did not sponsor any depository receipt programme for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2007.

5.	 IMPOSITION OF SANCTIONS AND/OR PENALTIES

	 There were no public sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its 
subsidiaries, Directors or management by the relevant regulatory bodies, during the 
financial year ended 30 June 2007.

6.	 NON-AUDIT FEES

	 The amount of non-audit fees paid by the Group and the Company for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2007, were as follows:

							       2007
						      Group	 Company
						      RM	 RM
	 Tax compliance				    30,489	 7,000
	 Transfer pricing studies				    13,671	 0
						      	
						      44,160	 7,000
						      	

7.	 VARIATION IN RESULTS

	 There was no profit estimation, forecast or projection made or released by the Company 
during or in relation to the financial year ended 30 June 2007. There were no variances 
of 10% or more in the results between the audited and unaudited results for the 
current financial year.

8.	 PROFIT GUARANTEE

	 There were no profit guarantees given by the Group and the Company during the 
financial year ended 30 June 2007.

9.	 MATERIAL CONTRACTS INVOLVING DIRECTORS’ AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS’ 
INTERESTS

	 For the financial year ended 30 June 2007, no contracts of a material nature were entered 
into or were subsisting between the Group and its Directors, or major shareholders.

10.	RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

	 There were no recurrent related party transactions entered by the Group and the 
Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

11.	CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

	 The Group’s corporate social responsibility activities and/or practices undertaken during 
the financial year ended 30 June 2007 are set out on pages 30 to 31.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

SHARE CAPITAL AS AT 8 AUGUST 2007 

Authorised Share Capital
1,000,000,000 authorised ordinary shares of RM0.10 each	 RM100,000,000	

Issued and Fully Paid-up Capital
265,046,000 issued and fully paid-up ordinary shares of RM0.10 each	 RM26,504,600	

Class of Securities	 Ordinary shares of RM0.10 each	

Voting Rights	 One (1) vote per ordinary share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 8 AUGUST 2007
No. of 		  Size of	 Total
Shareholders	 %	 Shareholdings	 Shareholdings	 %
0	 0.00%	 Less than 100 shares	 0	 0.00%
64 	 5.54%	 101 to 1,000 shares	 53,000 	 0.02%
596 	 51.56%	 1,001 to 10,000 shares	 3,482,900	 1.31%
354 	 30.62%	 10,001 to 100,000 shares	 13,536,933	 5.11%
139 	 12.02%	 100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares	 171,631,834	 64.76%
3 	 0.26%	 5% and above of issued shares	 76,341,333	 28.81%
1,156 	 100.00%		  265,046,000	 100.00%

LIST OF 30 LARGEST REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 8 AUGUST 2007 
(As shown in the record of Depositors)

No.	 Name of Shareholder	 No. of Shares Held	 %
1	 Netinsat Asia Sdn Bhd	 42,000,000	 15.85%
2	 Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam	 20,293,333	 7.66%
3	 Krishnan A/L C K Menon	 14,048,000	 5.30%
4	 AKN Capital Sdn Bhd	 12,666,667	 4.78%
5	 Cartaban Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd	 12,600,000	 4.75%
	 (SSBT Fund RNQU for Dubai Investment Group Limited)		
6	 CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd	 10,784,000	 4.07%
	 (CIMB Bank Berhad for Seow Lun Hoo @ Seow Wah Chong)		
7	 Lembaga Tabung Haji	 9,901,300	 3.74%
8	 Ke-Zan Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd	 8,680,000	 3.27%
	 (Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd for the Nassim Fund)		
9	 Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam	 8,066,667	 3.04%
10	 HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd	 7,808,900	 2.95%
	 (Exempt for JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (Jersey))		
11	 CIMSEC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd	 7,000,000	 2.64%
	 (CIMB Bank for Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam)		
12	 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd	 6,310,000	 2.38%
	 (HSBC (M) Trustee Berhad for the 

	    Hwang-DBS Select Opportunity Fund)		
13	 CIMSEC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd	 5,594,500	 2.11%
	 (Pledged securities account for Lalitha D/O Krishnan Nambiar)		
14	 Jaganath Derek Steven Sabapathy	 5,146,600	 1.94%
15	 Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd	 4,177,400	 1.58%
	 (Mayban Trustees Berhad for Public Industry Fund)

16	 HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd	 3,942,600	 1.49%
	 (Exempt for Credit Suisse)		
17	 HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd	 2,472,000	 0.93%
	 (TNTC for DBS Malaysia Equity Fund)		
18	 Multi-Purpose Insurance Berhad	 2,448,200	 0.92%
19	 Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd	 2,100,000	 0.79%
	 (Kumpulan Wang Bersama)		
20	 CitiGroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd	 2,000,000	 0.75%
	 (UBS AG Singapore for Maxcellon Capital Assets Ltd)

LIST OF 30 LARGEST REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 8 AUGUST 2007 
(As shown in the record of Depositors) (Continued)

No.	 Name of Shareholder	 No. of Shares Held	 %	
21	 AllianceGroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd	 2,000,000	 0.75%
	 (Pledged securities account for Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam)		
22	 Universal Trustee (Malaysia) Berhad	 1,816,000	 0.69%
	 (SBB Dana Al-Azam)		
23	 Tan Soh Goh	 1,763,100	 0.67%
24	 Edmund Hilary Tensing Ponniah	 1,758,500	 0.66%
25	 Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd	 1,757,500	 0.66%
	 (Public Islamic Opportunities Fund)		
26	 Universal Trustee (Malaysia) Berhad	 1,699,000	 0.64%
	 (SBB Emerging Companies Growth Fund)		
27	 Gunaretnam A/L Kathigasu	 1,600,000	 0.60%
28	 CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd	 1,545,000	 0.58%
	 (CIMB Bank for Salbiah Binti Shuib)		
29	 Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd	 1,535,000	 0.58%
	 (Malaysian Trustees Berhad for AMB First Capital Guaranteed Trust Fund)		
30	 Affin Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd	 1,523,900	 0.57%
	 (Pledged securities account for Tan Sew Hoey)				 
	 Total	 205,038,167	 77.36%		

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 8 AUGUST 2007
No.	 Name of Shareholder	 Direct Interest	 % 	 Deemed Interest	 %		
1	 Netinsat Asia Sdn Bhd	 42,817,200	 16.15%	 0	 0.00%
2	 Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam	 37,360,000	 14.10%	 0	 0.00%
3	 Krishnan A/L C K Menon¹	 14,048,000	 5.30%	 42,817,200	 16.15%
4	 Sreekumar A/L Narayana Pillai¹	 0	 0.00%	 42,817,200	 16.15%

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 8 AUGUST 2007

No.	 Name of Shareholder	 Direct Interest	 %	 Deemed Interest	 %	
1	 YBhg Dato’ Ahmad Kabeer bin Mohamed Nagoor²	 0	 0.00%	 12,666,667	 4.78%
2	 YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin Hj. Harun	 440,000	 0.17%	 0	 0.00%
3	 Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam	 37,360,000	 14.10%	 0	 0.00%
4	 Krishnan A/L C K Menon¹	 14,048,000	 5.30%	 42,817,200	 16.15%
5	 Nikolai Dobberstein	 1,000,000	 0.38%	 0	 0.00%
6	 Loh Lee Soon	 316,700	 0.12%	 0	 0.00%

(1) Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in Netinsat Asia Sdn Bhd		         (2) Deemed interested by virtue of his shareholdings in AKN Capital Sdn Bhd
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GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATIONS

3G	 Third generation digital wireless communications system
Act	 Companies Act 1965
AGM	 Annual General Meeting
AUD	 Australian Dollar
B2B	 Business to business
BCP	 Business continuity planning
Board	 Board of Directors
BPO	 Business Process Outsourcing
BPO/SSO	 Business Process Outsourcing/Shared Services Outsourcing
Bursa Securities	 Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
CCAM	 Customer Relationship Management and Contact Centre Association (Malaysia)
CEO	 Chief Executive Officer
Code	 Code of Business Conduct
CRM	 Customer Relationship Management
CSR	 Corporate social responsibility
ESOS	 Employee Share Option Scheme
FRS	 Financial Reporting Standards
GBP	 British Pound Sterling
ICM	 Internal control memorandum
ICT	 Information and communications technology
Informedia               PT Informedia Nusantara
INR	 Indian Rupee
IPO	 Initial Public Offering
ISO	 International Standards Organization
IT	 Information technology
JAMSB	 Jade Apple Marketing Sdn Bhd
JWT	 J.Walter Thompson
LOA	 Limits of Authority
MASB	 Malaysian Accounting Standards Board
MNC	 Multinational corporation
MSC	 Multimedia Super Corridor
PBT	 Profit before taxation
PIKOM	 Association of the Computer and Multimedia Industry of Malaysia
RM	 Ringgit Malaysia
RPG 5	 Recommended Practice Guide 5 – Guidance for Auditors on the Review of 	
	 Directors’ Statement on Internal Control
Scicom	 Scicom (MSC) Berhad
SCP	 Support Center Practices
SGD	 Singapore Dollar
SMT	 Senior Management Team
SSPA	 Services and Support Professionals Association
STAR                        Scicom’s Talent Assessment, Recognition and Development
Statement	 Directors’ Statement on Internal Control
The Company	 Scicom (MSC) Berhad
The Group	 Scicom (MSC) Berhad and its subsidiaries
TQM	 Total Quality Management
UK	 United Kingdom
USA	 United States of America
USD	 United States Dollar

Scicom (MSC) Berhad
25th Floor, Menara TA One
22, Jalan P. Ramlee	
50250 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia		
Tel	 :	 603 2162 1088
Fax	 :	 603 2164 9820
Email	:	 corpinfo@scicom-intl.com

2nd Floor, FSBM Plaza
3539, Jalan Teknokrat 7
63000 Cyberjaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Malaysia
Tel	 :	 603 8312 4262
Fax	 :	 603 8312 2255

Scicom (Academy) Sdn Bhd
25th Floor, Menara TA One
22, Jalan P. Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia
Tel        :	  603 2162 1088
Fax	 :	 603 2164 9820
E-mail	 :	 academy@scicom-intl.com

Scicom Contact Centre Services 
Private Limited
Unit 02, Level 10 
Innovator Building
International Tech Park
Whitefield Road
Bangalore 560066
Karnataka, India
Tel	 :	 91 80 41262020
Fax	 :	 91 80 41156092

Scicom Inc
4630, Woodland Corporate Blvd
Suite 160
Tampa 33614
United States of America
Tel	 :	 1 813 8805 5800
Fax	 :	 1 813 8805 5768 

Jade Apple Marketing 
Pte Ltd 
(formerly known as Scicom 
Teleservices Pte Ltd)
51, Anson Road
#14-67 Anson Centre
Singapore 079904
Tel	 :	 65 6323 3190
Fax	 :	 65 6323 3980
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NOTICE OF FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Resolution 1) 

(Resolution 2) 

(Resolution 3)

(Resolution 4)
(Resolution 5)

(Resolution 6)

(Resolution 7)

(Resolution 8) 

 
 

(Special 
Resolution)

 

AGENDA

A. Ordinary Business

1. 	 To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 
June 2007 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To declare a tax exempt final dividend of RM0.01 per ordinary share for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2007 as recommended by the Directors.

3.	 To re-elect the following Directors who retire pursuant to Article 84 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association:-

      (i)   Mr. Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam

      (ii)   YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin Hj Harun

4.	 To elect Mr. Loh Lee Soon, a Director who retires pursuant to Article 91 of the 
Company’s Articles of Association.

5.	 To approve Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

6.	 To re-appoint Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditors of the Company and 
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

B. Special Business

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the 
following Ordinary/Special Resolutions: 

7.	 Authority To Allot And Issue Shares

	 “THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act 1965, the Directors of 
the Company be and are hereby empowered to allot and issue shares in the 
Company at any time and upon such terms and conditions for such purposes 
as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit provided that the 
aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this resolution in any one 
financial year does not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company 
for the time being and that the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain 
approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and that such authority shall continue to be in 
force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company 
unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting.”

8.	 Proposed Amendments To The Articles Of Association Of The Company

	 “THAT the proposed amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company 
as contained in the Appendix II which is attached in the Circular to Shareholders 
dated 4 September 2007 be approved.

	 AND THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorised to assent to any 
modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be required by the 
relevant authorities and to do all acts and things and take all steps as may be 
considered necessary to give full effect to the proposed amendments to the 
Articles of Association of the Company.”

C.	 Other Business

9.	 To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given in accordance 
with the Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Act 1965.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 
Kristal Ballroom 2, 1st Floor, East Wing, Hilton Petaling Jaya, No. 2, Jalan Barat, 46200 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Wednesday, 26 September 2007 at 10.00 a.m. to consider the 
following:-

	

Notice Of Dividend Entitlement And Payment

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT subject to the approval of the members at the Fifth Annual 

General Meeting to be held on 26 September 2007, a tax exempt final dividend of RM0.01 per ordinary 

share for the financial year ended 30 June 2007, if approved, will be paid on 26 October 2007.

The entitlement date for the dividend payment is 9 October 2007.

A depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the dividend only in respect of:-

(a)	 Shares transferred into the Depositor’s Securities Account before 5.00 p.m. on 9 October 2007 in             
respect of transfers; and 

(b)	 Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the 
Rules of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By Order of the Board

NG YEN HOONG (LS 008016)
LIM POH YEN (MAICSA 7009745)
Company Secretaries

Petaling Jaya
4 September 2007

NOTES:-

1. Notes on Appointment of Proxy

	(i)	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy (or in the 
case of a corporation, a duly authorised representative) to attend and vote in his/her stead. A 
proxy may, but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(a) 
and (b) of the Companies Act 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

	(ii)	 Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he/she specifies 
the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

	(iii)	The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing, signed by the appointor or his/her attorney 
duly  authorised in writing, or if the appointor is a corporation, either under its common seal or 
under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

	(iv) 	The instrument appointing a proxy must be completed and deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company at Level 14, Uptown 1, No. 1 Jalan SS21/58, Damansara Uptown, 47400 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the 
meeting or any adjournment thereof.
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2. Explanatory Notes on Special Business

	 (i)	 Ordinary Resolution 8 – Authority to Allot and Issue Shares
 

The Ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will give the Directors the authority to allot and issue new 
ordinary shares up to an amount not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company 
for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the interest of the Company. This 
authority will commence from the date of this Annual General Meeting and unless revoked or 
varied by the Company at a general meeting, will expire at the next Annual General Meeting.

	 (ii)	 Special Resolution – Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company 
 

The Special Resolution, if passed, will bring the Articles of Association of the Company in line 
with the amendments to the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the 
MESDAQ Market.

Statement Accompanying Notice Of The Fifth Annual General Meeting 

(1) Venue, Date and Time of the Fifth Annual General Meeting 
 
The details of the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company:-

	 Place	 : 	 Kristal Ballroom 2, 1st Floor, East Wing, Hilton Petaling Jaya, No. 2,

			   Jalan Barat, 46200 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan 

	 Date and Time	 : 	 26 September 2007 at 10.00 a.m.

(2) Directors Standing for Re-election/Election

	 The name of Directors who are standing for re-election pursuant to Article 84 of the Company’s 
Articles of Association:-

	(i)	 Mr. Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam

(ii)	 YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin Hj Harun

	 The name of Director who is standing for election pursuant to Article 91 of the Company’s Articles 
of Association:-

(i)	 Mr. Loh Lee Soon

(3)	Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings

	 The attendance record at Board Meetings and other details of the above-named Directors are set 
out on page 34, and pages 12 to 13 respectively of this Annual Report.

Scicom (MSC) Berhad  (597426-H)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

I / We :
(Please use block capital)

NRIC no:

of

(Full address)

a member/members of SCICOM (MSC) 
BERHAD hereby appoint* the Chairman of 
the Meeting or 

of

or failing him/her

of

Proxy Form

as *my/our proxy/proxies to attend and 
vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf, at 
the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held at Kristal Ballroom 2, 
1st Floor, East Wing, Hilton Petaling Jaya, 
No. 2, Jalan Barat, 46200 Petaling Jaya, 
Selangor Darul Ehsan on Wednesday, 26 
September 2007 at 10.00 a.m. and at any 
adjournment thereof, to vote as indicated 
below :-

NO.	 ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS	 FOR	 AGAINST

1.	 Ordinary Business
	 Receive the Audited Financial Statements, 
	 Report of the Directors and Report 

of the Auditors thereon.

2.	 Declaration of a tax exempt final dividend 
	 of RM0.01 per ordinary share for 
	 the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

3.	 Re-election of Mr. Leo Suresh Ariyanayakam as  
Director pursuant to Article 84 of the Company’s  
Articles of Association.

4.	 Re-election of YBhg Dato’ Mohd Salleh bin Hj Harun  
as Director pursuant to Article 84 of the Company’s  
Articles of Association.

5.	 Election of Mr. Loh Lee Soon as Director pursuant  
to Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

6.	 Approval of Directors’ Fees for the financial year  
ended 30 June 2007.

7.	 Re-appointment of Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers  
as Auditors.

8.	 Ordinary Business  
Issue of shares pursuant to Section 132D of the  
Companies Act 1965.

9.	 Special Resolution
	 Amendments to the Articles of Association of  
	 the Company.

Note: 
(i)	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy (or in the case of a 

corporation, a duly authorised representative) to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy may, but need not be 
a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(a) and (b) of the Companies Act 1965 shall not 
apply to the Company. 

(ii)	 Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he/she specifies the proportion 
of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

(iii) 	 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing, signed by the appointor or his/her attorney duly authorised 
in writing, or if the appointor is a corporation, either under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or 
attorney duly authorised.

(iv)	 The instrument appointing a proxy must be completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 
at Level 14, Uptown 1, No. 1 Jalan SS21/58, Damansara Uptown, 47400 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, 
not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

(Please indicate with an “X” in the space provided above on how you wish your vote to be 
cast. If you do not do so, the Proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.)

Dated this  day of  2007

No. of ordinary shares held

Signature of Member / Common Seal






